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On behalf of Joseph B. Blake, a registered elector of the State of Colorado,
the undersigned hereby files this Opening Brief to appeal the Title Board’s
approval of the Title for Proposed Initiative 2007-2008 #62 (“Cause for Employee
Suspension and Discharge”) (hereinafter as the “Proposed Initiative™).

I. STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES PRESENTED FOR REVIEW *

A. Whether the Proposed Initiative, which groups hidden and distinct

_ purposes under the broad theme of requiring just cause for the suspension or

discharge of employees, violates the single subject requirement of Article V,
Section 1 (5.5) of the Colorado Constitution.

B. Whether the Proposed Initiative is Misleading, Confusing, Unclear
and Inaccurate.

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 20, 2008, the Title Board conducted a public hearing on the
Proposed Initiative pursuant to Colo. Rev. Stat. §1-40-106(1). There, the "I;itle
Board designated and fixed a title, ballot title, and submission clause for the
Initiative. Petitioner, a registered elector, timely filed a Motion for Rehearing
pursuant to Colo. Rev. Stat. §1-40-108(1) on February 27, 2008. On March 3,

2008, the Title Board denied Petitioner’s motion, whereupon Petitioner initiated




this original proceeding for review of the Title Board’s action, pursuant to Colo.
Rev. Stat. § 1-40-107(2).
I1I. STATEMENT OF THE FACTS
The Proposed Initiative’s text provides that, “No employee may be

discharged or suspended unless the employer has first established just cause for the
discharge or suspension.” Proposed Initiative Article XVIHI, § 13(1). The
Proposed Initiative defines “just cause” o mean: (a) incompetence; (b)
substandard performance of assigned job duties; (¢) neglect of assigned job duties;
| (d) repeated violations of the employer’s written policies and procedures related to
job performance; (e) gross insubordination that affects job performance; (f) willful
misconduct that affects job performance; (g) conviction of a crime involving moral
turpitude; (h) filing of bankruptcy by the employer; (1) simultaneous discharge or
suspension by ten .peré_ent_or more of the employer’s workforce in Colorado.
Proposed Initiative Article XVIII, § 13(2). Prior to being discharged or suspended
the employer is required to provide written documentation of the just cause used to
justify the action. Proposed Initiative Article XVIIL, § 13(3). Any employee who
believes he or she was discharged or suspended without just cause may, within 30
days of the action, apply for mediation of a claim. Within 180 days, a hearing shall

be held before a private mediator. Proposed Initiative Article XVIIL, § 13(4). The




mediator may award employee back pay or reinstatement or both. The mediator
shall assess the costs of his or her services to the losing party and may award
attorney fees to the prevailing party. The mediator’s decision shall be final.
IV. SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Voters will be surprised to learn that by voting for a just cause standard to
suspend or discharge employees, they are eliminating the employment at-will
doctrine in Colorado, eliminating Colorado’s civil service system, eliminating the
ability for employer and employee to contract and enter into collective bargaining
agreéments, and restricting a party’s fundamental right of access to the court
system and due process and to appeal a mediator’s decision. Grouping these
hidden and distinct purposes under the broad theme of just cause for the discharge
or suspension of an employee violates the single subject requirement because the
connection is too broad and too general to make them part of the same subject.

The title, ballot title, and submission clause of the Proposed Initiative are
misleading and do not correctly and fairly express the initiatives’ true intent and
meaning. The Préposed Initiative (1) fails to express the purpose of the Initiative
to repeal the employment at-will doctrine; (2} fails to clearly express that the
measure creates a new just cause standard governing the suspension and discharge

of all employees in Colorado; (3) fails to express that the measure eliminates the




constitutional right to contract; (4) fails to express that the measure eliminates a
party’s fundamental right of access to courts and due process rights to challenge a
mediator’s final decision; (5) is confusing and misleading with respect to the
mediation process; and, (6) fails to express that the Proposed Initiative eliminates
the constitutional civil service system. These are all essential features of the
Proposed Initiative that are mostly hidden from the voters.

V. ARGUMENT

A. The Proposed Initiative Violates the Single Subject Requirement by
Grouping Hidden and Distinct Purposes under the Broad Theme of Requiring
Just Cause for the Suspension or Discharge of Employees.

Colorado voters approved a single-subject rule by referendum in 1994,
-méking TABOR the last ballot measure to re-work multiple constitutional
provisions indirectly. An initiative violates the single subject requirement when it
relates to more than one subject and has at least two distinct and separate purposes.. .|
which are not dependent upon or connected with each other. The subject matter of
an initiative must be necessarily ana properly connected by something more than a
broad “common characteristic.” In the Proposed Initiative for “Public Rights in
Waters 11, 898 P.2d 1076, 1080 (Colo. 1995). At first glance, the concept of a

single subject requirement appears straightforward; however, an initiative with

multiple subjects may be improperly offered as a single subject by stating the




subject in broad terms. See In the Matter of the Title, Ballot Title and Submission
Clause, for 2007-2008 #17, 172 P.3d 871, 873-4 (Colo. 2007); In re Title, Ballot
Title & Submission Clause & Summary for 1999-2000 #258(A4), 4 P.3d 1094, 1097
(Colo. 2000). Grouping provisions of a proposed initiative to amend the State
Constitution under a broad concept that potentially misleads voters will not satisfy
the single subject requirement. In re Proposed Initiative, 1996-4, 916 P.2d 528
(Colo. 1996).

“The prohibition against multiple subjects serves to defeat voter surprise by
prohibiting proponents from hiding effects in the body of an initiative. In the “
Matter of the Title and Ballot Title and Submission Clause for 2005-2006 #55, 138
P.3d 273, 282 (Colé. 2006) (hereinafter “Initiative 55”). An initiative that joins
multiple subjects poses the danger of voter surprise and fraud occasioned by the
inadvertent passage of a surreptitious provision coiled up in the folds of a complex
initiative. In re Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause 2007-2008, #17,172
P.3d 871, 875 (Colo. 2007).

Therefore, this Court “must examine sufficiently an initiative’s central
theme to determine whether it contains hidden purposes under a broad theme.” 7d.
While this Court cannot address the relative merits of the proposal, it may evaluate.

the substance of an initiative to determine whether it complies with single subject




requirement. See n re the Matter of Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause for
Proposed Initiative, 1997-98 #30, 959 P.2d 822, 825 (Colo. 1998).

1. The Proposed Initiative repeals Colorado’s longstanding employment
at-will doctrine.

The purpose of the Proposed Initiative is to repeal the employment at-will
doctrine (Transcript of Initiative Title Setting Review Board, February 20, 2008,
Pp. 48-49). The purpose of the Proposed Initiative is hidden from signers of the
petition and voters. The doctrine of employment at-will has deep roots in American
law dating back at least to the nineteenth century. Employment at-will is an
empléyment relationship that is not governed by an individual contract of
employment, collectively bargained agreement, or statue. Either party may
terminate the employment relationship for any cause or no cause, except for an
illegal reason.

 Under the pro.posed constitutional amendment, 1o ernployeé can be
discharged or suspended unless the employer has first established just cause for the
discharge or suspension. An employer must provide an employee who has been
discharged or suspended with written documentation of the just cause used to
justify the action.

For purposes of this section, “just cause” is defined in the text to mean:

{A) Incompetence;




(B) Substandard Performance of assigned job duties;

(C) Neglect of assigned job duties;

(D) Repeated violations of the employer’s written policies and
procedures relating to job performance;

(E)  Gross insubordination that affects job performance;

(F) Willful misconduct that affects job performance;

(G) Conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude;

(H) Filing of bankruptcy by the employer; or,

()  Simultaneous discharge or suspension of ten percent or more of
the employer’s workforce in Colorado.

2. The Proposed Initiative imposes mandatory, binding arbitration on all

disputes involving the discharge or suspension of emplovees.

The Proposed Initiative creates a new procedural change for challenging an

employer’s decision to suspend or terminate employment with sweeping

constitutional implications. Any employee, public or private, who believes that he

or she was discharged without just cause, may apply for mediation within 30 days,

and a hearing will be held within 120 days before a private mediator. Any

mediator who finds that the employee was discharged or suspended without cause,

may be awarded all back pay and/or be reinstated in the position. The mediator

shall assess the costs of his or her services to the losing party and may further

provide for an award of attorney fees to the prevailing party. The damages and

remedies avatlable to the mediator are all new changes to the law.




3. The Proposed Initiative repeals the civil service system and deprives
parties of their access to courts.

The Proposed Initiative supersedes and impliedly repeals the Colorado’s
civil service system. Colo. Const. art. XII, § 13; C.R.S. § 24-50-125(3). The
Proposed Initiative’s substantive, procedural, and administrative provisions apply
not only to private employers, but to all government employees, as well. By way
of example only, certified state employeeé enjoy a constitutional property right in
their employment and, therefore, are entitled to due process and a mandatory
hearing before an Administrative Law Judge when that right is infringed. Colo.
Const. art. XII, § 13; Colo. Rev. Stat. § 24-50-125(3). A mandatory right to an
evidentiary hearing exists when the agency ﬁkes disciplinary action against the
employee that adversely affects the employee’s current base pay, status or tenure.
Due process includes the right to appeal an agency’s decision through the court
syst_em.i ”This impaéf is hidden from thé Votefs who wil.l bé.sur.prised to leérn that
by voting for this standard they are eliminating constitutional due process rights

enjoyed by state employees.

! The proponents have also offered Proposed Initiative 2007-2008 #76 (“Initiative 76™), which
exempts government employees from the Just Cause initiative. Thus, the proponents are
cognizant of this effect.




4. The Proposed Initiative eliminates the current state constitutional right
to freedom of contract.

The Proposed Initiative eliminates a person’s fundamental right to contract
as currently provided for under the United States and Colorado Constitution.
United States Constitution, art. I, § 10; Colo. Const. art. IL, § 11 (prohibiting laws
that impair existing contractual obligations).” Nothing in the Initiative provides
that it shall not apply to any existing contract of employnﬁent or written collective
bargaining agreement.” This is hidden to the voter who will be surprised by its
impact.

5. The Proposed Initiative eliminates one’s fundamental right of

unfettered access to the courts and due process rights to appeal a
mediator’s final, binding decision.

In making the mediator’s decision final and not subject to review, the
Proposed Initiative provides for an unconstitutional impediment to ones access to
court.* This is a separate and distinct issue from requiring merely requiring just

cause for one’s suspension or termination. Indeed, it is well-settied that, “Courts

% Although not relevant for this analysis, the Objector notes that this provision is certainly
unconstitutional under the Contracts Clause of the U. S. Constitution. The United States
Constitution art. I, § 10 provides that contractual rights shall not be impaired.

3 Initiative 76 does not apply to bona fide collective bargaining agreement which contain a
Eyrovisi_on that requires just cause for discharge and suspension from employment.

Initiative 76 does not provide for a mediator, let alone a mediator with final decision-making
authority. Instead, any employee who believes he or she was discharged without just cause may
file a civil action i district court. This evidences the proponents understanding that this
Proposed Initiative does not allow for a similar district court filing.




of justice shall be operi to every person, and a speedy remedy afforded for every
injury to person, property or character, and the rights and justice should be
administered without. . , denial or delay.” Colo. Const. art. X1i, § 13; CR.S. § 24-
50-125(3) (State Personnel Disciplinary proceedings—appeals—hearings—-
procedure).

One’s fundamental due process rights are also eliminated. The proposed
constitutional change provides no ability for one to have his or her day in court or
to appeal an adverse ruling by either private employers and individuals or
gevemment employees. Instead, the Mediator’s decision is final and not
appealable’ Cf Colo. Rev. Stat, § 13-22-203 (2007). “No person shall be
deprived of life, liberty or property without due process of law.” Colo. Const. art.
11, § 25. “The essence of due process is a fair procedure,” no particular procedure,
so long as elements of opportunity for hearing and judicial review are present. See
Norton v. Colo. State Bd. of Med. Exam’rs, 82,{ P.2d ’897, 901 (Colo. 1991)

(quoting deKoevend v. Board of Educ., 688 P.2d 219 (Colo. 1984)).

5 Unlike this Initiative, Initiative 76 specifically provides that the decision of the District Court
may be appealed to the Colorado Court of Appeals and the Colorado Supreme Court. Implicit m
the substantial re-write the proponents understand and acknowledge the constitutional infirmities
of the Initiative.
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6. The Proposed Initiative’s broad and sweeping substantive and
constitutional changes are hidden from the voters and inimical to this
Court’s precedent in similar situations.

These broad, dramatic, and sweeping changes are hidden from the voter and
signers of the petition. Voters ought to be able to consider these fundamental
changes separately as they go to the foundation of our judicial system. Courts have
acknowledged the difference between a Proposed Initiative’s seemingly procedural
changes and its aspects that affect fundamental rights. See e.g., In re Matter of the
Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause for 2003-2004, #32 and #33, 76 P.3d
460, 461 (Colo. 2003)..

In In re the Matter of the Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause for 2003-
2004, #32 & #33, 76 P.3d 460 (Colo. 2003), an initiative both implemented
procedural changes in the petition system and prohibited lawyers from
participating in the process of setting ballot titles. The prohibition on lawyers
serving in that role was substantive change, not a procedural oﬁe. “By foreclosing
any possibility that an attorney could serve on the title board, these initiatives
restrict the political rights of all attorneys. Under our prior decisions, this
exclusion from the political process is a substantive matter, not a procedural
change to the petitions process.” Id. at 462 (citing Evans v. Romer, 854 P.2d 1270

(Colo. 1993}, cert. denied, 510 U.8. 959 (1993)). Because it was a substantive

11




change to the rights guaraniteed by our Constitution, the court found this admittedly
narrow restriction on a fundamental right to be unrelated to tweaking the timelines
for petition submission and comparable requirement. In the Matter of the Title,
Ballot Title and Submission Clause for Proposed Initiative 2001-02 #43, supra, 46
P.3d at 448 (impairing fundamental right of referendum at local level was a
substantive amendment that was unrelated to reform of the petition process).
Initiative 55 soﬁght to prohibit government from providing non-emergency
services to persons who were otherwise not lawfully present in the United States.
Initiative 55 did not define “non-emergency” and “services”, categorize the types
of services to be restricted, or set forth the purpose or purposes of restricting non-
emergency services. See No. 55, supra. This Court rejected Initiative 55 under the
single subject rule stating, “We identify at least two unrelated purposes grouped
~ under the broad theme of restricting non-emergency government services;
decreasing taxpayer expenditures that benefit the welfare of members of the
targeted group and denying access to other administrative services that are
unrelated to the delivery of individual welfare benefits.” No. 55, supra, 138 P.3d
at 280; see also, In re Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause, and Summary for

1999-2000 # 104, 987 P.2d 249 (Colo. 1999) (proposal that has at least two distinct

12




and separate purpeses which are not dependent upon or connected with each other
violates the State Constitution’s single-subject requirement) (“No. 104™).
In No. 104, the complexity and omnibus provisions were hidden from the

voter. In failing to describe non-emergency services by defining, categorizing, or

identifying subjects or purposes, the Initiative failed to inform voters éf the
services the passage would affect.

The Supreme Court rejected a ?roposed ballot initiative which sought to
amend the Taxpayer Bill of Rights under the Colorado Constitution because it
violated the constitution’s single-subject requirement where the proposed initiative
created a tax cut, imposed new criteria for voter approval of revenue and spending
increases, and imposed likely reductions in state spending on state programs. See
Inre Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause, and Summary for 1999-2000# 37,
977 P.2d 845 (Colo. 1999) (citing Colo. Const. art. V, § 1(5.5); art. X, § 20).

In In re “Public Rights in Waters II,” supra, the Court held that grouping the
distincf purposes of water conservation district elections and the “Public Trust
Doctrine” under the theme of water did not satisfy the single-subject requirement
because such a connection was too broad and too general to make them part of the

same subject.

13




The Colorado Supreme Court has found numerous other situations where the
single subject rule was violated. See e.g., In re the Title, Ballot Title, and
Submission Clause for 2007-2008 #17, supra (initiative sought to create an
environmental conservation mission; however, a plain reading of the language also
revealed the inclusion of a public trust standard for agency decision-making); in re
Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause 19992000 #258(A4), supra (elimination
of school board’s power to require bilingual education was not a separate subject
so as to violate single-subject requirement); In re Proposed Initiative for 1997-
1998 #30, supra (court disapproved of an initiative burying unrelated revenue and
spending increases within tax cut language).

B. The Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause are confusing,
misteading, unclear, and hide the purpose and effect of the Proposed
Initiative.

The Board’s chosen language for the titles and summary must be fair, clear,
aﬁd accurate, and the language must not mislead the voters. In re Ballot Title
1999-2000 #258(A), sﬁpra. “In fixing titles and summary, the Board’s duty is ‘to
capture, in short form, the proposal in plain, understandable, accurate language
enabling informed voter choice.” Jn re Proposed Initiative for 1999-2000 # 37,

977 P.2d 845, 846 (Colo. 1999)). Inre Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause,

and Summary for 1999-2000 # 104, supra (initiative’s “not to exceed” language,

14




repeated without explanation or analysis in summary, created unconstitutional
confusion dnd ambiguity).

This requirement helps to ensure that voters are not surprised after an
election to find that an initiative included a surreptitious, but significant, provision
that was obfuscated by other elements of the proposal. In the Maiter of the Title,
Ballot Title and Submission Clause for Proposed Initiative 2001-02 #43, 46 P.3d
438, 442 (Colo. 2002). Eliminating a key feature of the initiative from the titles is
a fatal defect if that omission may cause confusion and mislead voters about wl;at

‘the initiative actually proposes. 1d.; see also, In re Ballot Title 1997-1998 #62, 961
P.2d at 1082. The Board is not precluded from adopting language which explains
to 'thé signers of a petition and the voter how the initiative fits in the context of
existing law, even though the specific language is not found in the text of the
proposed initiative. In re Title Pertaining to Sale of T a?)le Wine in Grocery Stores,
646 P.2d 916 (Colo. 1982).

The Court has stated that it wili “characterize the proposal sufficiently to
enable review of the Title Board’s action.” In re Initiative for 1999-2000 #258(4),
4 P.3d 1094, 1098 (Colo. 2000) (citing In re Ballot Title 1999-2000 # # 245() &
245(g), 1 P.3d 739, 743 (Colo. 2000)). This Court muét examine “an initiative to

determine whether or not the constitutional prohibition against initiative proposals

15




containing multiple subjects has been violated.” In re Initiative #30, 959 P.2d 822,
825 (Colo. 1998). Titles must “unambiguously state the principle of the provision
sought to be added, amended or repealed.” In re Title, Ballot and Submission
Clause, and Summary for 1999-2000 # 258(4), 4 P.3d at 1098 (Colo. 2000)
(quoting In re Ballot Title 1999-2000 # 104, 987 P.2d 249, 254 (Colo. 1999)).
I. The Ballot Title is misleading as it suggests that just cause is already
an applicable standard under Colorado law and further hides the

primary purpose of the initiative to repeal the employment at will
doctnne.

The ballot title’s first sentence provides for “An amendment to the Colorado
constitution concerning just cause for action against an employee by an employer,
and, in connection therewith, prohibiting the discharge or suspension of an
employee by an employer unless the employer has first established just cause.”
The use of the phrase “concerning just cause for action against an employee by an
employer” improperty suggeéts that some form of a just cause standard is alreédy -
Colorado law. Further, the action taken in association with this title is to require
employers to establish just cause prior to terminating them.

Moreover, the title, ballot fitle, and submission clause ignore the primary
purpose of the Initiative: to repeal the employment at-will doctrine. The language
fails to express that the employment at-will relationship is being replaced with the

creation of a new legal standard for terminating and suspending employees.

16




2. __The Ballot Title’s use of the term “mediation” is misleading and its
reference to the mediation process is confusing. unclear, and

incomplete.

Mediation is a non-binding dispute resolution process where an impartial
third party facilitates communication and negotiation and promotes voluntary
decision-making by the parties to a dispute. Conversely, arbitration is the
submission of a dispute to one or more impartial persons for a final and binding
decision, known as an award. Awards are generally final and binding on the
parties in the case.

The title and submission clause provide that an employee who believes he or
she was discharged or suspended without just cause “may apply for mediation to
seek an award of back wages and rei-ns-tatement in his former job or both.” Art.
XVIIL, §13(4)(B). The text clearly provides that the mediator’s decision is final,
The ballot title does not specifically state this, but rather provides that the Proposed
Initiative “allow[s] the mediator to assess costs for his services to the losing party
and award attorneys’ fees to the prevailing party.”

The use of tf}e term mediation is a misnomer and is designed to improperly
influence the voter that the process is amicable and not acrimonious. The use of
this term was specifically designed to mislead voters. Further, the title suggests

that this could be an alternative to litigation, since an aggrieved employee may
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“apply for mediation.” In fact it is the exclusive venue for resolving such claims.
The ballot title is unclear and incomplete as it not only fails to advise voters that
the mediator’s decision is final, but that it further eliminates a party’s rights to file
a lawsuit or appeal the mediator’s decision.

3. The Ballot Title is misleading as it eliminates the fundamental right to
contract.

The title, ballot titie. and submission clause fail to express the fact that it
eliminates the rights of employees to enter into a written collective bargaiﬁing
agreement or a contract of employment. The Fourteenth Amendment to the United
States Constitution 'p'réhibits the states from entering laws which impair obligations
of contract. See U.S. Trust Co. of New York v. New Jersey, 431 U.S. 1,97 S.Ct.
1505, 52 L.Ed.2d 92 (1977). In determining whether the law violates the contracts
clause, a muiti-step analysis is followed. First, the court must determine if the law
has the effect on-impairing contracts. If so, the court must determine if it is
‘imlljairing a state’s own obligation or impairing a private contract. A state may
enact a law which impairs its own existing contracts only if it is a reasonable and
necessary to serve an important public purpose. See id.

4,  The Proposed Initiative is misieading in that it fails to advise voters
that it eliminates the state’s civil service system.

18




The Initiative fails to express that it applies to all state employees and would
replace and eliminate the civil service system. See discussion supra.

5. The term mediation is a prohibited catch phrase.

Mediation conveys a non-acrimonious alternative dispute resolution
mechanism for resolving disputes. It is used to suggest that employment disputes
can be resolved amicably and outside of the court system.

“It is well established that the use of catch phrase or slogans in the title,
ballot title and submission clause, and summary should be carefully avoided by the
Board.” In re Ballot Title 1999-20000 #258(A), supra, 4 P.3d at 1100; see also, In
re Amend Tabor No. 32,908 P.2d 125, 130 (Colo. 1995). This rule recognizes that
the particular words chosen by the Title Board should not prejudice‘ electors to vote
for or against the proposed initiative merely by virtue of those words’ appeal to
emotion. Id; see also, In Re Ballot Title 1999-2000 # 215, 3 P3d 11, 14 (Colo.
2000). Catch phrases are words that work to a p;roposai’s favor without
contributing to voter understanding. By drawing attention to themselves and
triggering a favoralﬂe response, catch phrases generate support for a proposal that
hinges not on the content of the proposal itself, but merely on the wording of each

phrase. In re Ballot Title 1999-20000 #258(A), supra, 4 P.3d at 1100.
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Catch phrases may also form the basis of a slogan for use by those who
expect to carry out a campaign for or against an initiated constitutional
amendment, thus further prejudicing voter understanding of the issues actually
presented. Slogans are catch phrases tailored for political campaigns-brief striking
phrases for use in.advertising or promotion. They encourage prejudice in favor of
the issue and, thereby, distract voters from consideration of the proposals merits.
Id. (i.e.; be taught English “as rapidly and effectively as possible”). They mask
the policy question.

In 258(A4) the titles were materially defective for failure to include a key
feature of the initiative that resulted in misleading and confusing the voters. The
title board failed to articulate in the titles that school districts and schools cannot be
required to offer bilingual programs. Voters could assume that parents of non-
English speaking students will have a meaningful choice between an English
immersion prograny and a bilingﬁai program and thus favor the proposal as
assuring both programs.

In re Matter of Title, Ballot Title and Submission Clause for Proposed
Initiatives 2001-2002 #21 and 22, 44 P.3d 213 (Colo. 2002), the court held that
initiatives were misleading because they did not express creation of a new

constitutional duty on the part of the state to provide all children with an education
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to become productive members of society, fairly express goal of eliminating
bilingual education, did not reference parental waiver process, and intent to remove
English language instruction from local to state control.
VI. CONCLUSION
Petitioner respectfully requests that this Court reverse the State Title Board’s
action and to direct the Board to strike the title and return the Initiative to its
proponents.

Respectfully submitted this 1st day of April, 2008.

FAIRFIELD AND WQODS, P.C.

P/

Pouglas J. Friednash, #18128
John M. Tanner, # 16233
Susan F. Fisher, #33174

Petitioner’s Address:

1445 Market Street
Denver, CO 80202
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PROCEEDINGS

MR. HOBBS: Good morning. Le&‘s go ahead
and get starfed- This is a meeting of the Title Setting
Board pursuant to Article 40 of Title 1 of the Colorado
Revised Statutes. The date is February 20, 2008, and the
time is 9:04 a.m. We're meeting in the Secretary of
States's Blue Spruce Conference Room, 1700 Broadway,
Suite 270, Denver, Colorado.

The Title Setting Board todaf consists of
the following: My name is Bill Hobbs. I'm the Deputy
Secretary of State here on behalf Secretary of State Mike
Coffman. To my right‘is Dan Domenico, Solicitor General,
here on behalf of Attorney General John Suthers. To my
left is Dan Cartin, Deputy Director of the Qffice of
Legislative Legal Services, who is the designee of the
Director of the OGffice of Legislative Legal Services, who
is Charlie Pike.

Today we have four proposed initiatives:
two for this morning’s session and two thié afternoon.
aAnd I should also introduce -- excuse me. To my far
right is Cesi Gomez from the secretary of state's office.

Just by way of procedure, there's sign-up
sheets on the table by the door in the back of the room.
Anybody who wishes to testify, please sign up. The

meeting is recorded, and it's also broadcast over the
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Internet. The procedures that we follow when the —-- for
each agenda item, the board members first will be given
an opportunity te ask guestions of the proponents. It's
important that we understand -- make sure that we
ﬁnderstand each proposal.

Second, the board will determine if it has
jurisdicticn to seéet a title, and that necessarily
requires determining whether each measure complies with
the single-subject requirement of the Constitution. And
then third, if the board determines that it does have
jurisdiction to set a title, then it will proceed to
consider setting the titles using a staff—prepafed draft,
which is also -- a copy of which is the on the tables by
the back door.

Generally we take the testimony first and
then have discussion and vote. A decision is reached by
two out of the three members of the board, and anyone who
is dissatisfied with the decision-of the board today can
file a motion for rehearing within seven days of today.

With that, I would like to turn to the first
agenda item, which is 2007-2008 Number 57, Criminal and
Civil Liability of Businesses and Individuals for
Business Activities. And if we could hear from the
proponents first.

I believe, Mr. Grueskin, you represent

3
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proponents. If you could introduce yourself for the
record, please.

MR. GRUESKIN: ‘Thank you, Mr. Hobbs. My
name is Mark Grueskin, and ocur firm is counsel for the
proponents. I don't think I'm as sick as Mr. Domenico,
but I'm a little hoarse, so . . .

'MR. HOBBS: Do you have any general remarks
before I ask if there's questions? Anything you think we
need to know before we proceed?

| MR. GRUESKIN: No. I don't have anything.

MR. HOBBS: Are there any questions from
board members about Number 572 I think I have one or two
questions, just looking at the text. Subsection (4) says
that it's a complete affirmative defense for an
individual charged -~ that he or she reported the matter
to the attorney general's office. And I'm assuming
that's a complete affirmative defense both to a criminal
charge as well as to the civil damages that are also
provided for?

MR. GRUESKIN: That's correct.

MR. DOMENICO: I have a question. What do
you expect the attorney general to do with these reports?

MR. GRUESKIN: In terms of the reports?

MR. DOMENICO: Well, under Subsection {4) .

MR. GRUESKIN: Well, it seems that once the
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attorney general has that information, the attorney
general can determine whether or not to pursue a sort of
action under the laws of Colorado.

MR. HOBBS: Subsection (5){d) says that
moneys from the civil damages are exempt from -- I think
this is the 6 percent general fund appropriation limit.
What's the purpose of that? I mean, this maybe gets into
the single-subject discussion, but how is that related?

MR. GRUESKIN: That was a change made based
upon recommendétion at the review and comment hearing.
The original thought was that these moneys ought to be
able to be acquired withéut being subject to any sort of
TABOR limits. And at the comment hearing, the staff
indicated that they were already exempt, but that if that
kind of flexibility was to be built into the measure,
that this would be better change.

MR. HOBBS: 1Is there something -- I didn't
look for this. Is there something already in the 6
percent limit that exempts damages or things like this?

MR. GRUESKIN: I don't have any answer to
you. The staff did not raise that.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Other questions from
proponents? Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Mr.

Grueskin, on the -- the amendment to 18-1-606, Subsection

2007-2008 #57 and.2007-2008 #62
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(1), a new language -is ~- "business entity,"” and then the
new language, "agent, or High managerial agent are guilty
of an offense."

MR. GRUESKIN: Yes.

MR. CARTIN: And then paragraph (1) {a)
provides, "The conﬁuct constituting the offense consists
of an omission to discharge a specific duty of
affirmative performance imposed on the business entity by
law.” And I guess my firs; question -- I'll just kind of
go down the line here. My first question was, was it
unnecess -- I guess I'm wondering why the new language
hasn't been iﬁserted as well after "business entity” in
{1) {a}, or if that’'s unnecessary to conform it to the
change in the introductory paragraph.

And then in (1) (b}, the lanhguage states, as
we go forward a little bit, "authorized to manage the
affairs of the'buéineSS'entity or by a high managerial
agent acting within the scope of his or her employment or
in behalf of the business entity." And there it mentions
the high managerial agent, but it does not menti&n_an
agent.

And then finally, in the penalty provisions
in Subsection (3}, the next-to-last and the last sentence
state, "For an offense committed on or after July 1,

2003, a business entity shall be subject to the payment
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of a fine."” And the next senténce says, "An offense
committed by a business entity that would be a
misdemeanor or petty offense committed by an individual
shall be subject to the business entity to the payment of
a fine."

And again, I just wondered why -— whether it
was necessary to conform that language in Subsection (3}
to the change in Subsection {1) as well. S0, for
example, in the next-to-last sentence,_it would read,
"For an offense committed on or after Juiy 1, 2003, a
business agent” ~- "a business entity agent or high
ménagerial agent shall be subject to the payment of a
fine.™ .

That's my kind of overall question, is why
those types of conforming amendments are not in place or
unnecessary ror the remainder of the measure.

MR. GRUESKIN: Well, let me address them one
by one. The original language used a definition that the
legislative staff found duplicative of the existing
definition of agent, so that language‘waS'used
throughout.

The particular conduct in {1) (a) and (1} (b},
those provisions were not changed, because the purpoese of
the measure is to address accountability for the business

entities’ acts. Obviously individuals have liability

2007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #62
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under the existing statutes for their own acts, separate

from this statute. “Phis is aﬁout, as the title suggests,
criminal liability of business entities. And therefore,

the question was how far beyond that entity could the law
go. As to -~ so I don't believe that the changes to

{1) {a) and (1)(b)'were_necessary.

As to the confofming amendment to (3),
excuse me —— 18-1-606(3), it  seems to me that that either
would have been repetitive, because the question would be
whether or not legislature cén amend the statute further
to provide that clarity, or whether or not there are
separate offenses that might be implicated.

I think that, yoﬁ know, probably optimally
the language relative to offenses committed after July 1,
2003 could have been amended as well, but it seems to me
that ultimately that's going fto be an issﬁe for the
iegislatdre if it feels that there's -- clarity is.
required since it's in the statute.

MR. CARTIN: The offense that's referenced
there in 18-~1-606(3), in Ehe sentence that begins, "For
an offense committed on or after July 1, 2003," the
offense is the offense described in Subsection (1) of
18-1-6067

MR. GRUESKIN: Well, I'1l be honest with

you, I'm not actually sure that (3} is as related to (1)

gl
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; L as your Jguestion presumes.

o 2 MR. CARTIN: Okay.

_: 3 MR. GRUESKIN: ZAnd the reason is, is that

} 4 (3) uses the reference to a corporation. (2)(b) defines

* 5 a business entity, and (1) (a) addresses business entity.

6 Therefore, it seems to me that (3), we would have had to

¥ 7 have changed (3) entirely to expand it to business

? 8 entities as well as corporations.

j 9 And so that‘s.probably -- I mean, that's

; 10 probably a more iimited provisien than the extent of (1)

11 and (2). And standing on their own, {1) and {(2) —--

12 because, as the staff appointed out, these are not

E 13 separate offenses. These are simply circumstances

¥ 14 surrounding which there's liability for an offense.

: 15 S0 (1) {a) and ~- excuse me. (1) and {2)

% le stand on their own separate from (3); and therefore —-

: 17" again, I would reiterate that the legislature can, if it
| 18 chooses, make (3) consistent with (1} and (2). But

‘ 19 currently, (3) isn't consistent with (1) or (2) anyhow.
: 20 MR. CARTIN: Thank you.

i 21 MR. HOBBS: Any other dquestions for the

22 proponents?
: 23 MR. DOMENICO: Yeah. Actually, I have a
24 question about how you see the civil damages aspect of

. 25 this working. What would the citizen or individual

LTS L
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residing in Colorado who brought one of these actions --
how would they show civil damages? I mean, what do youA
expect -- what would they have to show? Say -- I don't
know -- give me an example, I guess.

MR. GRUESKIN: If there are damages flowing
from the nonperformance of the duty required by law.
What comes to mind is an entity is required to cease
polluting. It refuses or fails to do so, even though
it's under an order from the Department of Public Health

and Environment. And there are damages to the downstream

users or other -- you know, other aspect of the
environment or other citizens. It seems to me that's
the —-

MR. DOMENICO: - So this would be kind of a
qui tam-type thing? They wouldn't have to show damages
to themselves necessarily, but to the state?

MR. GRUESKIN: That's correct. They're
acting as private attorneys general. And for that
reason, there is no personal participation in the damage
award.

MR. DOMENICO: Okay.

MR. HOBBS: 1If there are no other questions,
let's move on, then, to the guestion of whether the
measure complies with the single-subject requirement. Is

there anybody who wishes to testify on that question?

£y
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Doug Friednash signed up, and I don't know whether you
want to testify on this or not.

Welcome, Representative Friednash.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Tharik you. It's been a few
years since those days, but I appreciate it. MNice to see
you. I'm here on behalf of the Denver Metro Chamber of
Commerce, and I would like to actually touch on some of
the things you just brought up in terms of questions, but
I think I'11 wait until the next aspect of this hearing
to do so, because I think it's probably more guided
toward those things.

The concerns that I have without obviously

-going into the merits of this are, we believe that this

does violate the single-subject rule, and in the
following ways: First, what we're dealing with here is
an existing criminal statute, and we are seeking to amend
something that's found in the criminal code that is the
title of that. And obviously, I don't think the language
of it fits within the title, but the tilts deals with
criminal liability for business entities.

Now, the first thing this dees is it expands
the liability for business entities to, basically, any
employee or agent of the company, as I read the
definition of agent. High managerial is basically the

same as -- it would be encompassed by the agent anyway.

i
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And then the second thing it does is it
creates a civil -- a separate <ivil private right of
action, which is not like the qui tam situation, because
the person who brings the qui tam case gets those damages
or is entitled to bring damages. The state can be the
party bringing the qui tam action.

S0 it's a little different, but basically it
creates the private right of action. BAnd that private
right of action is separate and distinct from the
criminal liability portion of this.

And again, it doesn't fit undetr the bill
title, in my view. But even asspming it did, it's
completely- separate and distinct. It creates a new,
separate private right of action where any Colorado
resident at all can bring a case, and the state gets the
award if there is an award. And if the party is
successful, they will be awarded attorneys fees and costs
under this séction, which is a new remedy to this case.
It also creates an affirmative defense, which appilies
apparently to businesses -- applies only to the agents
and not the business entity itself.

The final thing it does is something that
was asked but, which is this revenue source, which is
apparently going to be exempted from the TABOR -- or from

the Bird-Arveschoug Rmendment, as I read it, and I think

12
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that's a separate distinct issue.

So-as 1 view this; there are at least three
separate and distinct issues: c¢riminal liability, which
is the existing bill title this references; the civil
liability portion and creating civil liability for
individuals, agents, and business entities; and finally,
the third piece, which is this new revenue source, that
moneys are pald under the Colorado general fund, but the
title doesn't describe that that's even exémpted under
Bird-Arveschoug.

~So that's our brief reading of how this is
filing as a single subject. At that point, I'm happy te
take guestions or otherwise pass.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. Let me ask a
question or maybe suggest a different point of view and
have you respond to it. Maybe going to your last point,
I am kind of curious if you know whether or ﬁot damages
are already exempt under the Bird-Arveschoug Amendment.

MR. FRIEDNASH: I brought a copy of that
here, and I looked at it, and my understanding is it is
not, but I'm not positive. But I think they're not
currently exempted.

MR. HOBBS: Okay.

MR. FRIEDNASH: I think the first two

sections of 24-75-201.1 talk about the specific ways in
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which the exemptions apply, and I think there's only

three or four of them. That's my recollection of looking
at the statute.

MR. HOBBS: Well, let me just ask you, then,
just going back to kind of the general argument that
we're starting with a statute right now that deals with
criminal liability and kind of expanding it, the
propcsal, I think, is to expand it beyond that, but the
caption to the to the statute -- to 18-1~606, Criminal-
Liability of Business Entities, you know, my recollection
i1s that's an editorial thing that can be changed as the
statute is changed. -

And I guess I would suggest maybe for the
sake of discussion that the subject is something like
liability of business entities or, you know, liability
for wrongful conduct of business entities or something
like that.

And there may be a criminal aspect of that
liability and a civil damages aspect of that liability.
But the fact that there's different aspects of it
wouldn't violate the single-subject requirement.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Yeah, I think it's a title
problem. I agree with you. T think the fact that it's
creating a private civil right of action as well is what

makes it a separate and distinct issue, that it really is
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3 going bheyond that.

2 MR. HOBBS: Okay. But still the subject
3 would be liability for wrongful conduct of business

4 entities, wouldn't it? Wouldn't that be a fair

5 description of the single subject of this proposal?

6 MR. FRIEDNASH: I think that's one way to
7 look at it. But again, what is kind of disjointed in

8 this is the disconnect between Section (1) and {3), as we

9 pointed out, and even in (1) ({a) and (1) (b). 1I'm not sure
10 how that -- I don't necessarily buy the argument that
11 this is going to tie in -- that it incorporates employees

12 cr agents and high managerial employées the same way that
13 they've articulated.

14 ; And I think there is a disconnect with

15 respect to the issues insofar that (3} really deals with
16 criminal penalties. This one doesn't create criminal

17 penalties in that context for the employee or agent or °
18 high managerial agent. So I think.there are a little

19 different.

20 MR. HOBBS: Okay. Well, and maybe one other
21 thing that I wanted to ask about: For the sake of

22 argument, I guess, I could see that the civil damages,

23 you know, simply from the proponent's point of view, may
24 be simply part of the liability they wish to impose on

25 people that are, you know, responsible for the wrongful
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conduct of the business entity.

And once the measure imposes civil damages,
the money has to go somewhere. So putting it into the
general fund and saying whether or not it's subject to
the 6 percent general fund appropriation limit arguably,
then, would simply be administrative details, that you
have to deal with what happens to the money and,
therefore, wouldn't be a separate subject.

MR. FRIEDNASH: I understand your position
or your articulation of that issue. You know, having
served, T think the public is really weary of things that
disconnect from TABCR ana Bird-Arveschoug Amendment. It
is called Bird-Arveschoug. People know what it means. T
mean, it's got this general vernacular to it, as well as
TABOR.

I think they really -- when you say you're
going to exempt out something from the genetral fund or
spending limits, I think that truly is a separate issue
that calls for a discrete standard or discrete subject,
and T think therein lies the problem.

MR. HOBBS: Other gquestions from the board
for Mr. Friednash? Thank you very much.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you.

MR. HOBBS: I don't have anyone else signed

up to testify. Is there anyone else who wants to testify

16
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on the subject of single-subject compliance?

Seeing no one else, Mr. Grueskin; would you
like to respond?

MR. GRUESKIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. As
I understand it, the argument is that there are three
subjects: criminal liability, civil liability, and how
the revenue gets addressed. I will tell you, Mr.
Chairman, I have recrafted the bill title, should we get
there, and my single—subject_description is virtually
parallel to yours. So I think we're looking at it in the
Same way.

1 would also note for the board that the
supreme court has really addressed this issue in the éase
of Initiative Number 1999-~2000 Number 200(A). This was
dealing with provisions around the consent for a
physician to perform an abortion, and that initiative had
substantive provisions, had reporting provisions, had
civil penalties and criminal penalties and were found to
be a single subject.

Likewise, in this last cycle, there Qas an
Initiative Number 73 that went up to the supreme court in
and around a pay-to-play measure. The question was
whether or not the remedy was separate from the
provision, because it required certain -- it was a

multifaceted remedy, including the invalidation of the

17
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election. The court found that to be a single subject.

What we're talking about here are various
ways to ensure compliance with the requirements of law,
and the civil remedy is specifically crafted to be
triggered if the criteria in Section (1) are violated.

50 I think that they are necessarily related to the
ability or the subject of the liability for criminal
conduct in businesses.

As to the Bird-Arveschoug issue, the court
over and over has said implementation defails are not
separate subjects. You could not do this initiative
without -~ you couldn't do a Bird-Arveschoug exception
unless this were part of the law. And thére‘s nc reason
to think that voters are somehow going to have some
mental disconnect over creating the remedy and how the
resulfing revenue is treated.

So I'd ask you to look at that argument as a
reflection of the implementation measure and find this to
be a single subject.

MR. HOBBS: Questions for Mr. Grueskin?

MR. DOMENICO: Well, actually, I mean, I
would just —~ I'm not persuaded by the argument that the
Bird-Arveschoug part is a separate subject. But I have
real problems with the idea that you could take a statute

as it exists, applies -- creates criminal liability for

ra
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business -entities and both alter it to impose that
liability on individual employvees and managers and then,
also, change the current remedy from imposing criminal
liability on business entities to imposing criminal and
civil damages on individuals and on the business entity.

One or the other would seem to be a single
subject to me. And I haven't looked at the two cases you
cited, but neither one of them sounded exactly on point
to me.. I mean, obviously if you're creating a new crime,
you're going to have all softs of penalties for it. But
extending an existing form of liability to a new class of
people seems like one subject to me, and then imposing on
everybody a new form of liabiiity seems really like
another subject.

I mean, what's the necessary relationShip
between the two other than trying to, you know -- as you
say, I guess they're both trying to discharge criminal
liability. But I mean, that can't be ~— that can't be --
that's way too brecad, isn't it?

MR. GRUESKIN: Well, I don't think it's too
broad. 71 think the entire idea here is that there is
already a statutcry mechanism for assessing criminal
liability against employees and agents of a company for
their affirmative acts.

But what this statute deals with is either
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the passive act of knowing but not deing anything about
it or, in the alternative, not performing the duties
required by law.

So this simply takes kind of the existing
construct of being able to go against‘th@ business entity
and its agents for their affirmative acts that violate
the criminal laws and extending it where it only now
applies to the business entity for the knowledge without
somehow -- without intervening to take an action as to
the criminal act or, alternatively, knowing about the
failure to perform a duty imposed by law.

MR. DOMENICO: Right. So now an employee, a
low—level -— undef this measure, a low-level employee
under existing law before this measure who knows that his
company may be dumping polliution somewhere but it's not

really his responsibility but he's learned about it and

he doesn't do anything about it, under current law, he

probably has no potential liability.

But under this provision, he's on the hook
for criminal liability and civil liability. 1In addition,
the organization previously, the entity, would have been
subject to criminal liability, but now they're also
subject to this private right of action.

I mean, those seem like two sort of

things you -- they're related, obviously, but they’re not
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necessarily related. It seems to me you would be pretty
surprised if voting on one to mecessarily include the
other.

It's very different, it seems to me, than
the Bird-Arveschoug part, where if you just came in here
and saild, you know, we need td create this private right
of action against business entities, and it was just —-—
not the change in Section (1), but just the later change
creating the civil damages and the private right of
action for them, you know, it wouldn't -- that really
would seem to me to be just kind of a detail. You've
created this new revenue source and you've got to figgre
out whét te do with it.

But how that necessarily relates in a not
sort of surprising way to extending business entity
liability to individwal employees, I'm not -~- I'm
struggiing with.

MR. GRUESKIN: Okay. Well, let me first
address one of the issues that was raised in the
arguments that this was not a single subject and that
you've repeated now, which is that virtvally every
employee 1s going to have to face this liability.

Definition of agent is actually very, very,
very narrow. As already adopted by the legislature, an

agent is a director or officer or employee or other
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person who's authorized to bind the entity. And high

managerial agent 1s somebedy who's in a policy-making or
supervisory role.

It seems to me that in terms of actual
knowledge, that ~- whether that knowledge is as far-flung
and widespread in a corporate entity or business entity
is an open question. Those usually aren't secrets that
are openly shared among the entire workforce.

But in any event, 1t seems to me that where
the court has already addressed measures, it has civil
and criminal liability and found no single-subject
problem over a new substantive limitation, with new
reporting requirements, that simply eitending an existing
statute and the goal of that existing statute isn't any
more problematic than what the courts already addressed.

Arnd we may just have to agree to disagree,
but it seems to me that if i£ the coutrt can less a
provision that never existed, a requirement that never
existed and civil and criminal penalties that never
existed and say that they're all reasonably related, this
measure meets thalbt test.

MR. DOMENICO: I appreciate that.

MR. HOBBS: Any other questions? If not,
then let's turn the board discussion on the question of

whether the measure complies with the single subject
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requirement. Any discussion by the board?

MR: DOMENICO: Well, as you can tell, I have
real trouble with it. I do think a lot of people would
be surprised, even though -~ and T appreciate what Mr.
Grueskin said, that if this were sort of all new,
creating new liability for everybody, that that might be
a single subject.

But where you're -- I mean, it seems to me
this really is doing two things thaf would surprise a lot
of people: It's extending criminal liability that
currently exists to —- from just applying to business
entities, to applying to some c%ass of employees.

Whether it's as broad as it sort of seems to say, anybody
authorized to act on behalf of the corporation or the
entity, or whether it's narrower than that, in any case,

it's extended criminal liability to individuals, which

seems like one subject.

And then creating an entire new right for
civil damages brought by any resident creating a private
right of action seems, to me, to be a surprising
extension of the statute. That really is a different
subject.

And I'm going to -- if there's a rehearing
on this, which I'm guessing there would be, I'm going to

reserve the right to change my mind. But at the moment,
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I see those as two subjects.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. I guess I'm probably
looking at things as fitting within a single subject. T
respect the point of view, and I understand Mr.
Domenico's points, I think. I am sort of locking at this
as falling under the general subject that maybe something
like, you know, liability for wrongful acts of business
entities. And I think Mr. Grueskin expressed -- he
didn't label it as a purpose, but I think hevexpressed
that the purpose of the measure was to ensure compliance
with the law by business entities.

And the;e's several ways that the measure
approaches that, and they all, to me, seem to be related
to what I think is the major purpose. And like I say, I
think they fall under that general subject of business
liability. So I think it's probably a single subject, in
my view. Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. BAnd I
agree with you, Mr. Hobbs. I also -- I think Mr.
Domenico's raised some good points here. But I don't see
under the relevant precedent the surprise that I think
Mr. Domenico sees in the measures of a criminal and civil
liability connection.

1 do thing think, as Mr. Grueskin has

articulated,. that these provisions are reascnably
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related. And I think, as he said, that the provisions of
Subsection (4} and (5} of the measure dealing with an
affirmative défense and then the civil damages are all
tied into Subsection (1) of the measure and are triggered
by an offense under Subsection (1)} of the measure.

So I see the connectivity, and I agree with
Mr. Hobbs that it does seem to be the single -- that this
does fit under a broader subject or purpose of wrongful
conduct of business entities.

And I also wanted to just note for the
record that there were some changes made from the version
that was_submitted to staff, and specifically tﬁe version
of the measure that was reviewed by staff spoke to an
associated person as well as the business entity being
gullty of offense and continued definition of associated
person. And that was subsequently changed for subnittal
to the title board to "agent” or "high managerial agent.™

And 1 also would note that in the original
draft, Subsection (5){d) provided that the moneys -- the
civil damages shall be exempt from the revenue-spending
provisions of Section 20 of Article X of the Coloradc
Constitution. And now in the measure submitted to the
board it provides such moneys when appropriated shall be
exempt from the provision of Section 24-75-201.1,

Arveschoug Bird [sic].
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And there were a number of other technical
kind of changes that were made in response. In my mind,
per 140-105 Subsection (2}, these changes from the draft
that was submitted to legislative staff are in response
to‘some or all of the comments of legislative counsel and
Legislative Legal Services and do not amount to a
substantial amendment that would otherwise have been -~
would require to be resubmitted. So I just wanted . . .
Thank you.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. Any further
discussion? If not, is there a motion on the guestion of
single-subject compliance? I guessAI’ll go ahead and
move that the board finds that the measure complies with
the single-subject requirement and proceed to set titles.

MR. CARTIN: Second.

MR. HOBBS: Any further discussion? If not,
all those in fair say "aye.”

MR. CARTIN: Aye.

MR. HOBBS: Ali those opposed, "no."

MR. DOMENICO: No.

MR. HOBBS: That motion carries two to one.
Then let's go to the titles. We do have staff-prepared
drafts.

Mr. Grueskin, have you looked at the staff

drafts? Do you have any comments?
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MR. GRUESKIN: I do.

MR. HOBBS: Ms. Gomez will put the staff
draft on the screen. I think Mr. Grueskin may have an
alternative draft?

MR. GRUESKIN: I have taken the liberty, Mr.
Chairman, of trying to recraft this, because I think that
as originally stated, the single-subject description
wasn't accurate. And, frankly, it seemed to me that the
title wasn't all that descriptive. And what I've done is
I've got black-lined version and then a clean version at
the bottom. There would be hopefully no changes between
them, |

. Let me describe generally what I've done.
I''ve stated the single subject, much as you did, Mr.
Chairman. And then I've changed the initial reference to
extending criminal laws —- because it's about liability,
and the Stétute is so titled -~ to making it clear, to
the extent I could, in a brief form what this change was,
in terms of extending it to a business entity's agent --
agents and defining them in the parenthetical -- begins
"including directors, officers,™ et cetera -- and then
sets forth the two conditions in (1) (a) and (1) (b}, the
nonperformance of duties required by law and the essence
of approval by persons authorized to either be directors

or manage the entity.
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T have taken out the affirmative defense
language in the middle because it applies to both
criminal and civil, and that wasn't clear. And it sSeemed
to me that introducing that before you introduce the
civil action might be confusing to voters. I've put that
at the end.

I've tried to shorten, in certain instances,
the language. I don't use "business entity" in every
instance. I don't use "high managerial agent"” in every
instance, as you'll see. I've combined the civil
action -- excuse me. I've tried to simplify the
description of civil aétions and the attorney fee and
costs remedies and then described the affirmative defense
at the end to make it clear what is affirmative defense
and that it applies to both civil and criminal
proceedings.

I've tried to keep it brief, and I think
mine runs maybe three or four lines long. I'm certainly
open to any thoughts or improvements the board might
have.

MR. HOBBS: Let's just take a minute or two
and take a look at that.

Hopefully everybody's had a chance to loock
through this. Personally I think I like this approach

better but, you know, I think we're sort of at a fork in
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the road, you know, just to decide whether the board
wants to work off of the staff draft or work off of Mr.
Grueskin's, you know, marked-up changes to the staff
draft.

So personally, you know, T like -- in
general, I like the changes that Mr. Grueskin has
suggested and would prefer to work off of that. But I'm
curious how the other board members feel.

MR. CARTIN: I would agree with that, Mr.
Chairman. |

MR. HOBBS: 1Is that all right with you, Mr.
Démenico?

MR. DOMENICO; Yeah. That's-fine.

MR. HOBBS: Let's work from there then, and
I think Mr. Grueskin did pass out some copies. Hopefully
people that need a copy -- anybody else need a copy? Do
you have enough for "everybody?

MR. GRUESKIN: 1I've only got one for myself.

MR. HOBBS: If there's others -- others that
want copies? Yes. Let's just take a-minute and we'll
run some other copies off.

Mr. Friednash, maybe when you're ready,
we'll give you a chance to respond it this, but I want to
give you a chance to look through this.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Sure. Thank you.
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MR. HOBBS: Ms. Gomez has some additional

copies for anybody that wishes for another copy. Again,
I still only have Mr. Friednash signed up to testify. Is
there anybody else who wishes to sign up to testify on
the titles for Number 5772

Mr. Friednash, are you pretty close?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Yeah.

MR. HOBBS: 1If you would like to give us
your comments on Mr. Grueskin's draft.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you. T make the
felleowing points, T guess, just reading through this: I
think it should indica£e -— when I look at the fourth
tine down, it says, "directoré, cfficers, certain
employees.” I think it's "all employees™ or just
"employees." I think “certain employees" is misleading.

As I read again the definition of agent,
under the existing law, it says, "any director, officer,
or employee of the business entity.” It's not certain
enployees. It's any employee.

And so that's the first thing. So I think
that should be stricken in order to make it not
misleading. And then it says, "and agents.” 1 think it
should be "high managerial agents,” to be consistent
with, you know, the statute. BAgain it's -- and for other

reasons, as you will see in a second. Because the high
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managerial agents are the ones who formulate business
policies or supervise employees, so that's what that's
intended to mean.

And T don't think we should create this
inference that it just -- the problem is, it creates an
inference that it only applies to these certain enployees
or high managerial employees, when, in fact, it's any
employee at all under a business. And I think that needs
to be clarified.

Farther down where it says, "creating a
civil action against a business, its agent . . ." I
think it needs to say -- again, that it should say it's a
private right of a&tion by any Colorado resident.

Again, voters need to know that this applies
to every single Colorado resident; otherwise, it's not
clear who the civil actien applies to.

And then it strikes against a business -- if
I'm going too fast or I'm losing anyone, let me know. I
apologize —-- against a business or its agent; Again,
this is confusing, in that we have used a different
description here than what exists above for the criminal
liability.

Again, it creates an inference that the
criminal and civil piece is different when they're the

same. It applies not just to agents. Again, it's all
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employees. It should indicate it's liability to -- civil
liability applies to a business entity's agents,
including directors, officers, employees, and high
managerial agents. So I think that should be clarified
in this area, too, for the civil piece of this.

The descripticn discussion about the general
fund in the state of Colorado, I understand your uniform
position about that, but I think we need to indicate that
it is exempt from the state’s spending limits. And I
think that should be clarified so the voters -- that's
net hidden from the voters. I think that's something the
voters will want to know and should ke advised about the
very séecific nature of this funding mechanism.

The last piece -- well, two other real quick
pocints: It says, "and allowing persons who disclose to
the attorney general all facts known to them." . I think
it really should say "require it."” It's not just
allowing. You have a duty. If you want to utilize
affirmative defense, you've got to report this to the
atforney general. We probably need to say the Colorado
attorney general, just for clarity.

And then I think vou need to indicate in
here the variant that disclosure must occur prior to
being charged with an offense.

Now, I understand these need to be brief. I
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understand, but I think it's really important not to
Create inference that you can advise somebody at any time
but yet the disclosure has to occur beforehand.

I thirk in order for this ballot to be fair
and clear -~ the title to be fair and clear, unambiguous
and not mislead the voters, those changes need to occur
to this title.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. Any questions for
Mr. Friednash? Thank youl

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thanks.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Grueskin, would you like to
respond?

MR. GRUESKIN: 1I'll take good suggestions, .
no matter their source. I really don't have any problems
with virtually any of these suggestions. I think my
one -- I mean, let me say at the outset, I think that the
clarification to "a business entity's agents and
employees" is fine. I don't know that the title has to
be exactly reflective of that, particularly because it's
an existing law. I think you have a little more
flexibility.

I'm totally fine with where Mr. Friednash
goes on that introductory clause that it's underlined,
taking out the word "employees" and substituting "high

managerial agents. "
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I have no problem with his language about
creating a private right of action by any Colorado
resident. 1 don't think that the -- the whole point of a
private right of action is that it's going to be brought
by individuals. So I don't think you need that "by any
Colorado resident” language, but if Mr. Friednash feels
that that's important language, it doesn't bother me.

Likewise, I don't have any problem with his
inclusion of a more expansive describtion of agent in
that same reference to civil actions. It seems to me
that’'s fine.

He raised the issue of the revenue
exemption. That to me seems like -~ I mean, I'm not
really sure that you could find one in a hundred people
who knew what the Bird-Arveschoug meant, as long as you
left the state capitol out of your survey area.

And more to the point, I'm not really sure
that that’'s a central element to the measure, which is
this board's test. If you want to put it in, I mean,
that's not a battle as far as I'm concerned. But I think
you have plenty of room not to put it in.

Now, I wasn't exactly sure -- that brings
us, then, just to the language about the affirmative
defense. I don't think you need insert "Colorado"™ as a

modifier to attorney general. Again, if you want to do
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it, go for it. But I think that that's the assumption,

since there's no way that the Colorado statutes could be
amended to require the U.S. attorney general or any other
state attorney general to have any sort of role here.

Requiring persons -- Mr. Friednash wanted to
use the word “"requiring," and I guess you would have to
change it so that it would be "reqdiring that persons
disclose to the Colorado attorney general all facts known
to them in order to qualify for an affirmative defense.“
Doesn't really affect me one way or the other. TI'm okay
with that.

And I think that the aspect of including the
language "prior to any charges" is fine; but again, I
don't think it's an essential detail. If you want to put
it in, the proponents have no objection whatsocever.

. MR. HOBBS: If you wouldn't mind going back
to the first one, because I probably got confused. 1In-
line 3, the reference to "certain employees,” was it
there that you were saying instead of saying "certain
employees,"” we can simply change it to "high managerial
agent"?

MR. GRUESKIN: No. I think Mr. Friednash
wants to take out the word "certain.”
MR. HOBBS: Okay.

MR. GRUESKIN: And then the comment after
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employees it says "and," and I think he wants to insert
the words "high managerial” as a modifier to "agents." I
didn't think that was all that descriptive, but if the
term of art is seen as somehow more communicative to
voters than the definiticn itself or the summary of
definition, I'm totally okay with it.

MR. DOMENICO: 1I'll tell vou what I would

suggest to deal with that is, after "business entities™

on line 3, get rid of "agents" and "including," and then

get rid of "certain." And then I would leave out "high
managerial,” because I'm not it -- I think I agree with
Mr. Grueskin. I don't know that it adds much.

The description that comes after "agents”

defines high managerial agent, right? They're the ones

who formulate a business's policies or supervise
employees, and so it's kind of redundant.
But I do think you could get rid of a
little -- I'm not sure that the "agents including” part
is necessary. And then you avoid using "agent™ over and
over agaln, which I think could be a little confusing.
So that's what I would suggest.
MR. HOBBS: What was again, Mr. Domenico?
MR. DOMENICO: Working off of Mr. Grueskin's
draft, on the third line, it says, Liability to a

business entity's agents, comma, including. And I would
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get rid of agents, comma, including and just go straight
to "liability to a business entity's directors,
officers" -- and I would get rid of "certain," as Mr.
Friednash suggested -- "employees." And then I would
leave the rest, what Mr. Grueskin suggested.

MR. HOBBS: You're okay with that, Mr.
Grueskin?

MR. .GRUESKIN: Um-hum.

MR. HOBBS: And I thought the word "certain®
was there because it's just those employees who are
authorized to act on behalf of the business entity.

MR. DOMENICO: But every employee is
authorized to act én behalf. I mean, that's whalt being
an employee is, right? I'm confused, really, how this is
going to work out. That's part of the problem,
obviously. But I mean, that's what -- everyone's
authorized to do something.

MR. HOBBS: Well, I was looking at it more
narrowly instead of it being -- an agent being any
employee of the business entity, being at least somebody
who could act on behalf in the sense of speaking for or
binding the entity or something.

Granted, in the sense, everybody does act on
behalf, and literally T think vyou're right, Mr. Domenico.

I just wasn't -- I'm assuming that the -- that an agent
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the business entity. Perhaps I'm wrong.

MR. GRUESKIN: I think that is a very good
point. That’'s why we used the word "certain” originally,
because I think the case law is fairly clear that not
every employee 1is authorized.to act on behalf of a
business entity. I mean, if you are a member of the
maintenance‘staff and you go in and you sign checks,
those probably aren't binding checks of the entity.

MR. DOMENICO: Well, that's noi what the
measure says or what the statute -- I mean, this is not
your fault. You're‘not changing this part. But what the
statute says is, agent means any director, officer, or
emplovee of a business_entity, or any other person who is
authorized to act on it.

The way I read that is, "agent” indludes all
emplovyees andpother people who may not be employees but
who are authorized to act on behalf of the business
entity. So now, how that would apply to who you would
hold criminally liable I'm not -- and civilly, I'm not
clear how this would work out. But that's what the
definition of agent says to me in the current statute,
which isn't being changed.

MR. HOBBS: I think that's a good point. I

wasg overlooking the fact that it does say, Director,
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officer, or employee, without limitation.

MR. GRUESKIN: I think for purposes of
setting the title, you know, this is a matter that the
courts are ultimately going to establish, but for
purposes of setting the title, T accept Mr. Friednash's
change. There can't be an argument that somehow the
reference to "employees” is going to be misleading,

SO . . .

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Well, shall we go ahead
and propose a change here and maybe kind of'takerthese
one by one, unless there's more guestions or, Mr.
Grueskin, you have other things to say about --

MR. GRUESKIN: No.

MR. HOBBS: 1 think you've covered Mr.
Friednash's points. I guess I would first like to
discuss Mr. Domenico's suggestion with respect to line 3,
which T think is to strike the word -~ at the beginning,
strike agents, comma, including. And then strike the

word "certain,” I believe. And is that it?

MR. DOMENICO: That was my suggeétion, yeah.

MR. HCBBS: So it would read, "extending
criminal liability to a business entity's directors,
officers, employees, and agents, who formulate . . ." et
cetera. I think I'm fine with that, and I think Mr.

Friednash is fine with that. He's nodding yes. Mr.

39
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- employees. And, in fact, it's broader than that, right?

4Q

Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Do you need an "and" between
"officers" and "employees" there? The way that it reads
right now, can it be construed to mean all directors,
officers, employees, and agents who formulate business
policies or supervise employees? The only agents who
formulate a business policy or supervise employees are
the high managerial agents.

And I guess to say to state it differently,
the way you just read it, it sounds as though it only
extends liability to directors, officers -- not only. It
extends liability to directors, officers, employees, and

agents who formulate a business's policies who supervise
p

MR. HOBBS: I think you're right. I think
that would be a good clarification to the language.
You're saying this phrase "who formulate a business’'s
policies, ™ et cetera, only modifies "agents"?

MR. CARTIN: Um-hum.

MR. HOBBS: As opposed to modifying
everything that precedes it. So I think we
could insert -- it would make sense to me to insert the
word "and" after "officers" and strike the comma-after
"employees" so that it reads -- I guess I'1l just make

this motion for discussion purposes, that the first part
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of that clause would read, Extending criminal liability
to a business entity's directors, comma, officers, comma,
and employees, and agents who formulate a business's

pelicies, et cetera. Do I have that correct? 1Is there a

second?

MR. CARTIN: Second.

MR. HOBBS: Any further discussion?

MR. DOMENICO: I think that's an
improvement.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. All those in favor say
Taye.™

MR. CARTIN: Aye.

MR. DOMENICO: Aye.

MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, "no;“ That
motion carries three to zero. Other changes to Mr.
Grueskin's draft?

I would 1like to support Mr. Friednash's
suggestion about private right of action. This is in
one, two, three, four, five —- line six, I think. And I
think for discussion purposes -- I'm not sure what I'm
about to say is sufficiently economical, but I guess T
would suggest striking the phrase "creating a civil
action” and substituting the phrase "allowing any
Colorado resident to bring an action for civil damages”

and then pick up again with what's already there,
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;against & business entity or its agent."”

S50 that clause would read, "allowing any
Colorado resident to bring an action for civil damages
against a business or its agent for such criminal
conduct." Is tﬁere any support for that? I guess I'l1
make that a motion for the sake of discussion. If
there's not a second --

MR. DOMENICO: I'll second it. I think

that's an improvement.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Discussion? All those in

favor say "aye.”

MR. CARTIN: Ave.

MR. DOMENICO: Ayé.

MR. HOBBS:- All those opposed, "no.” That
motion carries three to zero. Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: As a matter of process, are we
going to put all these up once . . .°

MR. HOBBS: J'll read them into the record,
since we don't --

MR. CARTIN: We're working off Mr.
Grueskin's draft.

MR. HOBBS: Yes, if that's okay. BAnd then

this is kind of the old~fashioned way, but we'll just

have to do it that way. And I'll read it into the record

once we're done.

42
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MR. DOMENICO: No multimedia assgistance?
How can we survive?

MR. HOBBS: It'll be version two dot zero.
We'll work on that one next time. Knowing that when Mr.

Grueskin comes, he sometimes brings his own draft. Any

~other suggested changes to Mr. Grueskin's draft?

MR, DOMENICO: You know, I sort of leave it
up to you guys, but I actually thought that a statement
about exempting fhe award in the civil action from
revenue limits might add something to some pecple. I
guess 1 sort of agree with Mr. Grueskin; it's probably
not central, but it is something that 1s part of it.

It's not insignificant, I don't think. So I think that
might bé a valuable addition.

MR. HOBBS: It first struck me that way, but
I guess the more I thought about it and based on Mr.
Grueskin's comments, it does strike me that outside the
capital and the capital complex, I'm not sure that would
mean much to those people.

MR. DOMENICC: Well, I mean, I would agree
that Bird-Arveschoug doesn't mean anything to most
people, but I think most people do understand that there
are revenue limits on the state. A&And I would ket more
people understand that concept than know what the general

fund is versus some other fund, and we've got the general
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1 fund in there.
2 So I mean, I can go either way on that. I
3 mean, I also suppose people will understand this is
4 unlikely to be huge amounts of money. Who knows. But
5 this may not be a big ccncern. It doesn't look like --
6 it's not really a revenue measure. So I just thought I
7 would throw that one out there.
B MR. CARTIN: 1 guess I'm not really
g compelled to add it.
10 MR. DOMENICQO: All right. I won't make a
| 11 motion, then.
iz MR. CARTIN; Ckay.
13 MR. HOBBS: Okay. Any other changes to Mr.
14 Grueskin's draft? If not, is there a motion to adopt Mr.
15 Grueskin's draft as amended? Mr. Cartin, so moves. Ifll
18 second that. And so before we vote, let me read, then,
17 what the title would be into the record.
18 The title would be an amendment to the
18 Colorado Revised Statutes concerning liability for
20 criminal conduct of businesses, comma -- oh, I would like
21 to make one other suggested change, and that is after the
22 word "and" but before "in connection therewith,"” insert a
23 comma. I think we normally put one there. So it would
24 be businesses, comma, and, comma, in connection
25 therewith, comma. Is there any objection to that change?
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And T will start my reading over again with that comment.

So Mr. Cartin's motion, ¥ think is -- is a
that a friendly motion to your motion?

MR. CARTIN: I deem that a friendly
amendment .

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. The title would read
as follows: BAn amendment to the Colorado Revised
Statutes concerning liability for criminal conduct of
business, comma, and, comma, in connecfion therewith,
comma, extendiné criminal liability to a business
entity's directors, comma, offiéers, comma, and employees
and agents who formulate a business's policies or
supervise employées, comma, if the business fails to
perform duties that are reguired by law or if management
engages in, comma, authorizes, comma, solicits, comma,
requests, comma, cémmands, comma, or knowingly tolerates.
the business's conduct, semicolon, allowing any Colorado
resident to bring ah action for civil damages against a
business or its agent for such criminal conduct,
semicolon, réquiring that awards in civil actions be paid
to the general fund of the state of Colorado; semiceolon,
permitting an award of attorney fees and costs toc a
citizen who brings a successful civil action, semicolon,
and allowing persons who disclose to the attorney general

all facts known to them concerning a business's criminal

45
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conduct to use that disclosures as an affirmative defense
to criminal or civil charges, period.

And then the ballot title and submission
clause would be the same but in the form of a question,
sc that it would begin, "Shall there be an amendment,”
et cetera, and ending with a question mark. I think
that's the motion. Any further discussion?

MR. DOMENICO: I'11l just explain why -- T
mean, since I think it contains two subjects, why I}m
going to have to vote against it, even though it does a
goed job of laying out what's in there.

I mean, just the single subject stated aé
liability for criminal conduct of businesses could
contain all sorts of things in addition to these. You
could be creating dozens of new substantive crimes, could
be doing all sorts of things.

The way it's written now makes pretty clear
that —- to me that within that rubric of liability for
criminal conduct of businesses, you're doing two really
different things. The first part, extending liability to
all these individuals and then creating this civil
action.

And so while I think the title reflects the
measure fairly well, I think it highlights for me why

I've got this difficulty with the single subject. So
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that's why 1'1! wvote no.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Thank you. If there's no
further discussion, all those in favor say "aye."

MR. CARTIN: Aye.

MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, "no.”

MR. DOMENICO: ©No.

MR. HOBBS: That motion carries two Lo ohe.
That completes action on Number 57. And the time is
lQ:19 da.m. Let's take a five-minute break, and then
we'll proceed with the other agenda item. |

(Break from 10:19 a.m. to 10:28 a.m.)

MR. HOBBS: Let's resume, if everybody's
ready. We'll go to the next agenda item,’2GG%—20@8
Number 62, Cause for Emplcoyee Suspension and Discharge.

For the record, the time is 10:29% a.m.

And, Mr. Grueskin, I think yoéu represent
proponents on this one, I believe. If you would like to
come forward, identify yourself for the record. We'll
see if there's any gquestions or if you have any general
comments,

MR. GRUESKIN: My name is Mark Gruesskin, and
our firm is counsel for the preponents. I don't have any
general comments. I'm just going to jump into it if the
board wants me to.

MR. HOBBS: Are there any questions from the

47
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board for the proponents?

MR. DOMENICO: I guess I just have one
question about how this works. I mean, my reading of
it -+~ I guess it's (2} (I) is the only exception for a
kind of business slow-down-type releases. So a company
can't lay off 5 percent or 8 percent. It's got to layoff
att least 10 percent or its liable under this section. Is
that

MR. GRUESKIN: That's what the wording
reflects.

MR. DOMENICO: Okay.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Mr. Grueskin, does this apply
to all employers, including government?

MR. GRUESKIN: 1I'm sorry?

MR. CARTIN: Does this apply to emplovees Of
all employers, including governmental employers, like the
State or local government, in addition to a
private-sector employer?

MR. GRUESKIN: The proponents didn’'t include
a specific governmental exception.

MR. CARTIN: Is it fair to say that this
provisicn impacts, if not overrides, the
employment-at-will doctrine in Colorado?

MR. GRUESKIN: I think that was the intent
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of the proponents, yes.

MR. CARTIN: Thank you.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Domenico.

MR. DOMENICO: 1Is crime involving moral
turpitude as, you know, defined anywhere in statute, or
is that kind of just worked out?

'MR. GRUESKIN: T actually haven't researched
that; but T think that to the extent that any of these
provisions are either unclear or are -- require some sort
of collaboration, the proponents included Subsection (5),
allowing the general assembly to pass appropriate
legislation. Seo¢ I assume that if thét reference isn't
clear, the legislature would make it clear.

MR. DOMENICC: All right.

MR. HOBBS: Any further questions for
propeonents? If not, then let's move on to discussion of
whether the measure complies with the single-subject
requirement. I think I héve one person signed up to
teétify.

Mr. Friednash, do you have comments on a
single—subject issue?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Yes.

MR. HOBBS: If you'll identify yourself for
the record, please, and who you represent.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Good morning, again. Doug

49
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Friednash appearing on behalf of the Denver Metro Chamber
of Commerce. Let me just start with a few basic points
and then kind of go into specific issues that we would
like to raise this morning.

Obviously the governing principles you're
all very familiar with. I think there's a few that are
really particularly apt here, though: The concept that
an initiative can't hide purposes unrelated to its
central purpose is one of them.

Properly applied, the single-subject
requirement helps to ensure that voters are not surprised
after an election to find an initiative included a
surreptitious but significanﬁ-provision that was
coenfiscated by other elements of the proposal. And I'm
going to get to these points in a minute here.

And the title board may evaluate the
substance of an initiative to determine whether it
complies with the single-subject requirement. And the
impact of the pioposed initiative or constitutional
amendment on existing coﬁstitutional provisions have to
also be administered in your single-subject analysis.

I raise this point because this particular
propesal has massive implications for the way this state
does business. They are complex, and they are way too

broad tce unite these multiple subijects. And they're
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1 procedural and they're substantive and they're

2  administrative and they impact virtually all facets of

3 employment, every single facet of employment in this

4 state.

3 The true purpose obviously beyond this is to
6 elininate the at-will employment relationship in

7 Colorado, which has existed for many, many years. The

8 relationship basically allows -- basically, in a

9 nutshell, it provides that employees or employers can

10 terminate employment with or without a cause, with or

11 without reason, except for illegal reasons, at any time.
12 And this completély modifies that. 1It's not discussed in
i3 the initiative. The true purpose of this is hidden here,
14 and-it replaces it with this just-cause provision.

15 Now, just cause, I would point out, is --

16 there already is a definition of just cause in the

17 Colorado Constitution, and it's referenced in Article
18 XII, Section 13, Sections 1 and 8. It replaces it with a
19 different definition.
20 Putting aside for a second that this also
21 conflicts with 8 —- and again, I'm not trying to get into
22 the merits, but I think in the context, these are the
23 things that are at issue here. It conflicts with 8-73 --
24 I think it's 108 ~~ that deals with traditional

25 unemployment awards for partial benefits or full awards
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for compensation as well.

It creates this new inconsistent definition.
Again, this is a different definition of just cause. It
eliminates employers' right to contract. And again, this
is not discussed here. Tt's in the initiative, but the
fact that the fundamental right to contract is recognized
by Article I, Section 10 of the United States
Constitution.

Again, that isn't discussed anywhere. But
by creating this just cause, companies that have internal
policies, by way of example only, this replaces it.
You've got this intérnal mechanism to handle employment
disputes foér suspension, by way of example only. Or you
have at-will employment contracts that are -- you know,
many, many businesses do specifically provide for that by
way of contract. This completely eliminates it. It
eradicates your right to contract.

It cuts off one's unfettered access to the
court system. Again, this is really hidden in the
initiative. But let me talk just real guickly. If thié
applies, which it does, to state employees, you've ‘just
eliminated -- this has to be a separate subject -- the
entire civil service system of Colorado.

And that civil service system -- and it

never mentions it, but that civil service system provides

2007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #62
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certified state employers two basic precepts: one is,
you have a certified state employee, which, as I
understand it, is an employee who's been with the state
for a year or more. They have certain rights. And those
rights are recognized by the Colorado Constitution.

And those rights -- again, it's not in here
anywhere, but those rights include the right to a
hearing, the right to have an agency determination by an
administrative law judge, the right to appeal that to
state appeal board, and the right to appeal that to the
Colorado Court of Appeals. 1It's gone.

For everyone else, there's this, qguote,
mediation process -~ which 1711 talk about in a second ~-
which, as anyone knows, it's a complete misnomer.

Mediation is issued to describe nonbinding
dispute resolution. As it's used here, it‘s used,
really, essentially as arbitration. I thihk that's a
catch phrase or a slogan that will mislead voters. They
won't understand it. But it is described, really, in the‘
contexﬁ of mediation, which is really arbitration.

But what it does is, there's a mediator
who's appointed -- and I don't know what the process is.
I don't know what the burdens of proof are. But the
mediator decides this, and there's no appellate provision

whatsoever.
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And I think by doing this they create two
problems: It conflicts with Article XII, Section 13 of
the Colorado Constitution and Colorado Revised Statute
24-50-125, Subparagraph (3). And that provides that the
courts of justice shall be open to every person and a
speedy remedy afforded for every injury to person,
property, or character aﬁd the rights and justice should
be administered without denial or delay.

Ironicélly enough, the argument that that's
a separate kind of issue was made by Mr. Grueskin in the
case of -- the matter concerning Ballot Iniltiative 55,
the single-subject issue that dealt with nonemeréency
services and talking about how nonemergency service
really encompassées all these other rights; and
therefore -- and the court agreed -- these things are
not -- they basically violate single-subject
;equirements.

So to eliminate that, that creates a problem
with our constitutional right to access to the court. As
well as your constitutional right to due process that's
recognized both in the federal and state constitution.
The state constitution reference is Article XIT —--
Article II -- I apologize -- Section 25.

The essence of that process provides you are

entitled to a fair hearing. In case law -- and I'm happy
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to give you cites -—- it's clearly articulated that that
also means appellate rights. So you've completely
eliminated that, and you have effectively eliminated the
state civil service system and employees' rights to
appeal and handle that. Again, these things are not
described anywhere in this proposal.

The text of this also creates some problems.
I can go into that when we get to that point. But the
overall problem with this is ———you know, there's -~ the
number of cases that are somewhat analogous when we look
at an initiative that has procedural and substantive
éhanges that are hidden when they're complex and they're
wéy too broad to be unified under a singie—subject
analysis, that's what's presented here. And in a’
nutshell, I think those are the kind of overall general
problems with this proposal.

MR. HOBBS: Questions for Mr. Friednash? "

MR. DOMENICCO: I think I just have one.
It's true, isn't i%t, that a number of other states- have
something similar to this? A number‘of states have an
abrogated at-will employment, have they not? I mean, not
necessarily through this sort cof an amendment to the
constitution.

MR. FRIEDNASH: My understanding is that --

again, I have not researched this point specifically.

55
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But my understanding is the only state that has a just
cause —- and I may be wrong —-- but is Montana. The
juSt-cause provision.

MR. DOMENICO: Okay.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Mr. Friednash, just to be clear
in your argument about the state civil service, the
constitution provides for the state civil service and the
perscnnel system for -- and out of that, we've got
extensive rules and regulations for due process and
disciplinary action and suspension and termination.

Tt's your position that this Will eliminate
that or at least supersede it in addition to its impact
on employment at will in the private sector and would
alsoc necessarily -—- if there are local governments that
have perscnnel boards set up for thé purpose of hearing
complaints, it would gverride those as well and just
provide ~-~ and have a uniform just-cause standard, and
this mediation -- the just-cause standard, the mediation
would replace all of those procedures and substantive
rights that are in place right now? Is that your
argument?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Yes. And another piece, I
mean, there’s new remedies that aren't provided now, and

that's another aspect of this. You've got the ability to
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seek very specific damages, such as reinstatement, back
pay as well, that are not currently provided for.

But I mean, it conflicts with those things
or supersedes them. Let's assume, for argumentative
sake, that proponents argue, Well, this is just one
option you have; you can apply it, but you can still
pursue those. It's unclear from this if that's true or
not .

But I would argue that you're going to havé
all kinds of issue preclusion and claim preclusion
arguments that are geing to prohibit you from pursuing
those.

So effectively, once an employee reqguests.
mediation, they're entitled to mediations: and mediation
take place within 120 days, as I read this text. So I
think ultimately there's just a plethora of substantive
and administrative -- substantive procedural and
administrative changes that's follow from this.

And it's analogous to when you talk about
certain provisions being too broad to be unified. I
think that's what you have here. There's a lot of
separate subjects, in my view, but there's also a lot of
separate components that fall within this. This is going
to impact all kinds of statutes and constitutional

amendments that exist that the voters won't even come
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close to understanding, because they're hidden in this.

MR. CARTIN: Just taking one provision, 1s
it your progression that this measure conflicts with
Article XII, Section 13 of the constitution?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Article XII, Section 13

baeing?

MR. CARTIN: The personnel system.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Yes.

MR. CARTIN: You think it's in conflict with
that?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Absolutely.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Thank vyou.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thanks.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Grueskin, would you like to
respond?

MR. GRUESKIN: I don't really think that
there is a great deal to respond to, frankly. When I was
asked whether or not there was an exception to government
employees, I think my statement was, is that there is no
exception written in;

However, as the board knows, courts will
construe provisions of the constitution to cperate
together. And if they -- only if they find an absolute
conflict will they find that one has to implicitly appeal

the other.
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1 There's nothing to suggest here that ——
Z certainly no expressed language -— that the state
3 personnel system is repealed. There's no intent to
4 repeal the state personnel system. BAnd there's no reason
3 why a court would find this to be at odds with the
6 expressed provision or find it to be in conflict with the
7 expressed provision.
8 As to the elimination of fundamental rights,
9 I would suggest that I've tried that argument. It
10 doesn't really work very well in this process. Having
11 been informed by the supreme court on at least one
12 occasion, and I believe more that, that dida't -- that my
13 superimposition of a fundamental right on an initiative
14 didn't somehow affect its single-subject status.
15 As to all these variocus effects that Mr.
T16 Friednash picked.eff, whether they are or aren't effects
17 is difficult to say. But it's certainly beyond the
18 purview of this board to project that they will or won't
19 happen. Even if they did happen, it would comprise a
20 separate subject. I really could go through each of
21 them, but I would like to keep this short, unless you
22 have specific discussions. !
23 MR. HOBB3: Any questions for Mr. Grueskin?
24 Mr. Cartin.
25 MR. CARTIN: Mr. Grueskin, the decision in
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Number 55 =- I kmow you're very familiar with that
decision, and just a couple of pieces from that
particular case. The court said, "Thus, we must examine
sufficiently an initiative's central theme, as expressed,
to determine whether it contains incongruous or hidden
purpeses or bundles incongruous measures under a broad
theme."”

And then the court went on to conclude that,
"We conclude these two purposes terminating services
benefiting the welfare of individuals not lawfully
present in Colorado and denying access to unrelated
administrative ;ervices that facilitate organization and
regulation are incongruous. The prohibition against
multiple subjects serves to defeat voter surprise by
prohibiting proponents from hiding effects in the body of
an initiative.”

Could you -+ and the court said, "First,
this initiative's complexity and omnibus proportions are
hidden from the voter." If you would be so kind ﬁo just
explain for me how Number 62 comports with the staﬁdards
set forth by the court in 55.

MR. GRUESKIN: I know that the title board
struggles with Number 55 on a routine basis and I think
that its application, in a wvariety of different contexts,

has been questioned. And when I view Number 55 as the

60
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basis for a single subject, the board doesn’t necessarily
agree with me.

It seems to me what 55 was all about was a
set of proponents that were saying, literally saying, as
the court acknowledged in its decision, this applies to
absolutely everything under the sun the government does.
And it talked about the fact that what was being
curtailed wasn't the purpose necessarily, that -- excuse
me. That the provision of government services wasn't the
purpose, that it was this across~the-board addressing of
where government services would be denied.

And the court's particular concern, as I
recall it, was that proponents could legitimately hold
out and voters could legitimately lead if there were
certain, quote, nonemergency services, if those would be
understood. And those, you know,.related to welfare-type
services the health-type services that wouldn't be
affected -- excuse me. The health services wouldn't be
affected, but welfare and other types of government
aséistance services would be affected.

But then the court pointed to the Web site
of the proponents who said, We really intend this to
apply to every single type of service, administrative
services, land title recording, and the like. And court

said, You can't hold out one objective and secretly or in
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their instance, not so secretly, hold out a second
objective when people aren’t going to naturally link
them.

1 don't see where there's any disconnect
from what this measure does. As proponents have drafted
it, it sets up a different standard for when certain
sorts of employment actions can occur. I guess I'm not
sure where there's some sort of hidden impact because of
the change in that standard.

MR. CARTIN: Thank you.

MR. DOMENICO: I guess the only question I
have along those lines is, if -~ the language that the
decision of the mediator shall be final or (E} really is
meant -- is that really intended, as far as you

understand it, in fact, to mean that there is no appeal,

-no ability to take this mediator's decision into court

anywhere?

Or is it Jjust meant to sort of -- because I
mean, I guess I do see ~- and maybe it's really more of a
merits problem,.that if that was the intent, you may
actually have the problem with due processes. People
don't have the right to -- either side doesn't have the

right to take this into court. Or is that meant -- I

“mean, there are lots of decisions of people —- final

decisions that you still can appeal from, right? I mean,

62
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that was the way I was originally interpreting that, that

then you could go -- there would be some kind of appeal
right probably from there.

MR. GRUESKIN: That's correct.

MR. DOMENICO: Okay. 1 guess my only other
question in this is more just an option question too is,
is the intent with this mediation, is that the —- could
an employee pursue another remedy? T mean, could —- it
éays an employee may apply for mediation, but ceould the
employee say, I don't want to deal with the mediator; T

just want to go straight into court for a violation of

the other parts? It doesn't seem to prohibit that. I

guess that's something that could be spelled out by the

general assembly, maybe.

MR. GRUESKIN: That's correct.

MR. DOMENICO: Okay.

MR. GRUESKIN: That's correct. The idea, as
I understand it, of the proponents was to set up an
expedited process whereby these matters could be
resolved, resolved quickly. If the? weren't resolved,
then obviously there are other remedies. And as you
point out, there's nothing in here that says that
traditional remedies are beyond the reach of the affected
parties.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Grueskin, would it be close
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if I characterized the single subject as what's expressed
in the caption of the single subject being just cause for
employee discharge or suspension, and the purpose of the
measure to abolish the at-wiil employment doctrine?

MR. GRUESKIN: Well, in terms of the
single-subject statement that's in the staff draft, I
didn't change that. So I thought that that was an
accurate reflection. And, you know, except as otherwise
provided as indicated already, there are other provisions
of the constitution. I think this has the effect that
you've outlined.

MR. HOBBS: I'll just go ahead and sort of
express where 1 am on the question. I mean, I think that
is, in my mind, a fair statement of the single subject.
Although there are others, perhaps. But the fact that
the enactment of this would override a lot of things, you
know, some provisions in the constitution that-deal with
?he state personnel system or statutory provisions that
deal with unemployment compensation, things like that.
The fact that it overrides a lot doesn't seem to me that
it has more than one subject.

It requires just cause for termination or
suspension, 1 think, for all employers in Colorado,
public or private, I think. I mean, that's the way I'm

reading it. That has a lot of effects, I think, as Mr.
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Friednash points out, but I don't view those effects as
being separate subjects. You know, so that's kind of why
I'm asking it. And that it's all related: everything in
the measure is rela}ed to —- connected to a purpose of
the proponents to eliminate the at-will employment
doctrine.

If I'm way off from that, I want to kriow,
but that's the way I'm locking at it.

Is there an?body else who wishes to testify
on the single~subject question?

Mr. Friednash, did you have anything else
you wanted to say?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Briefly. I think you are
entitled and do need to loock at this in terms of its
implications, because I don't think you can just look at
it in that vacuum.

And the 55 case clearly articulafes, as do a
few others, the Waters case -- they talk about how some
things can be so broad that you have to look at their
implications of the other things in terms of the
single-subject analysis.

And he just indicated that the mediation
issues are found. This is going into the Colorado
Constitution. This is not a statute. This is going into

the Colorado Comstitution. Once again, we're amending

65
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the Colorado Constitution in a very substantial way.

And obvicusly I'11 get to should this
proceed to the title. I don't know how you fix the
title. Tt is going to be confusing. It is going to be
misleading to voters. And that's what's happening. And
because this touthes so many issues and it has such a
broad theme, I think it does create these single subjects
within it.

And the fact that we aré basically dcing
away with the stafe personnel system is a separate and
distinct issue. The fact that we are doing away with
people’s other constitutional rights are separate issues.
They may be cloakea in this issue, but this will be a
very controversial initiative.

And I'm talking about the initiative. It's
going to be controversial in a sense because it does go
to all thesg other separate and distinct constitutional
amendments. Andrto throw ocur hands up and say, Well, the
court can seort this out later, T don't think the court in
55 was saying-ﬁe're going to wait until later. 1 think
they want it sorted out now rather than later. Thank
you.

MR. HOBBS: Can T ask, Mr. Friednash, would
it be fair to say, though, that -- you know, we accept

your argument that essentially an initiative proponent
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cannot, by way of initiative, eliminate the at-will
employment doctrine. Or to state it another way, an
initiative cannot require all employers in Colorado to
have just cduse to terminate or suspend an employee. I
mean, you're basically saying the initiative just can't
do that.

MR. FRIEDNASH: No. I think the initiative
can do that. What I'm saying is, this does a lot of
other things that are unrelated to that. I guesé that's
the point. Tt's not just doing away with the traditional
at-will employment. It's dcing a lot more than that.

It's changing the mechanism which all
employment matters are dealt with through the system. It
is changing the state personnel system. It is modifying
recovery for these kind of claims and remedies for these
claims. It's modifying people’s right to due process,
pecple’s right of access to court. That's the problem.

It's not just changing the standard.
They're not just saying from now on, here's the new
standard. They're saying we're going to do it in a way
that conflicts with a lot of other issues that I think
should be spelled out, because they are fundamental and
profound issues.

MR. BOBBS: If the proponents so eliminated

Subsection {4), the remedy provisions, would that solve
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the problems that you're raising? You're saying the
remedy -- that the measure goes on doesn't simply require
just cause, but it goes on and provides a mechanism
that’s in conflict with the state personnel system, for
example.

MR. FRIEDNASH: That's part of it, yes. I
mean, I think that's part of the problem. 1It's part

Section (4), and you still -~ assuming Section (4) was

gone, which is separate, you still have the issue with,

you know, to extend -- I guess this turns more on the
issue of whether it's misleading or confusing.
Again, there is a definition that is

provided for under another constitutional amendment for

what is just cause, and this conflicts with that. 1In

terms of your guestion, yeah, that's, I think, the bulk
of the problems.

MR. DOMENICO: Could the state -- could
someone propose an iﬁitiative that said, We hereby
abolish due process in Colorado? I mean, in the sense of
would we have the authorxity to, under your undérstanding,
say, You can't pass an initiative that amends that, Jjust
because it's got so many effects throughout everything?

Do you think that's within our authority, or
vice versa, to say either we abolish due process or we

adopt; we say you have to have due process in this state?
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MR. FRIEDNASH: Well, obviously anybody can

propose anything in this state and do it. But on a
serious level, it's a great guestion, because you have
other pieces to that. But at least that would be
addressing a very specific single issue.

And the problem here is that this touches on
so many different aspects. It doesn't just deal with
just cause, and it's not just the enforcement. There's
remedy provisions. There are constitutional rights that
afe in play here that really are separate and distinct.

The issue again about éivil service, I think
that is the clear effect, and it should say that in_ here.
We ére abolishing or eliminating the civil service
system, because this is what it does. And again, it is a
constitutional amendment. It is not an initiative.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you. I appreciate
your time.

MR. HOBBS: And I don't have anybody else
signed up to testify. So I'll turn to board discussion
on the single-subject question. Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Well, I think this one is a
close call. And I understand the chairman's line of
questioning about measures that override a number of

provisions or they impact a number of exlsting
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constitutional and statutory provisions, that that, in
and of itself, does not render a measure violative of the
single subiect.

This one —-- when you consider some cof the
impacts of the measure that Mr. Grueskin has admitted to
and that Mr. Friednash has raised here, it does -- you
know, under the language in 55, when I look at the
court -- when it said, "First, this initiative's
complexity and omnibus proportions are hidden from the
voter” -- and again, I think that may be a subjective
determination on a case~-by-case basis, but I think there
could be some guestion under 55 on the sinéle subject and
whether or not 62 meets the single-subject grouhds.

I am going to give the measure and the

proponents the benefit of the dcoubt under the line of

forward and effectuate a single subject where one can be
ascertained.

I think the statement in the staff draft of
the single subject concerning just cause for action
against an employee by an employer, maybe we can talk
about that as well, if we get to that point.

But at this point in time, I would support
moving forward with -- while being respectful and

recognizing the issues that Mr. Friednash has raised and
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I myself having some heartburn over the fact that this
measure, despite Mr. Grueskin's assurances that the
cburts will move to harmonize conflicting provisions, it
does seem to have a direct impact on not only the
constitutional provision governing the civil service
system but employment at law and a number of other due
process and existing rights under employment law in
Colorado.

MR, HOBBS: Okay. Thank you.

MR. DOMENICO: I actually -- I don't think I
have too much trouble with this one. I mean, I think I
agree, first of all, with Mr. Grueskin, that it's
unlikély this would be interpreted to conflict with the
civil service amendments. Courts do go out of their way
to avoid bringing conflicts if they don't have to. Even
1f it did, I'm not sure that creates a single subiect.

I mean, you can do broad things through the
initiative process that impact all sorts of stuff. You
can do it through any kind of a constitutional amendment.
I mean, as I tried to bring up iﬁ my example, if the
state had no due process constitutional requirement and
someone came in and proposed one, I think that's pretty
clearly a single subject, even though due process
probably has an effect on essentially every area of

people's legal relationships, at least.
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And so if you're going to do something
broad, that doesn’t make.it two subjects. I mean, where
I had a difficulty with the last one was, you had to rely
on a very broad subject to do very specific things, and
that's the difficulty I had with that one. This one just
does something very broad, and it has a lot of impacts,
but it's a single subject.

I mean, there's a little qguestion, I guess,

about the mediation aspect of it. But that to me -- the

procedural aspect of how you carry out this new regime

seems to be part of the type of thing that's usually
allowed to go forward. 1 mean, whether that's the best

system or not or whether you would have to include

'something or let it be worked out, probably not. But

that's up to the proponents,

And not getting. into thg wisdom of the
measure itself, it seems like a single subject that is
intended to have a very broad effect and do a lot of
things, as Mr. Friednash pointed out, but I don't think
that gives us -- we have the authority, even under 55, to
reject 1t because of that.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Just briefly. And again, I
want to be clear that my argument is it's very broad, and

so it may have single-~subject problems. My argument is

2007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #62
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that under 55, you can have a broad title, and that isn't
necessarily violative of single-subject grounds. But
when you have this ~w'“The prohibition against multiple
subjects serves to defeat voter surprise by prohibiting
proponents from hiding effects in the body of an
initiative." Again, "This initiative's complexity and
omhibus proportions are hidden from the voter.™

When a measure is so broad that you have
that type of, you know, danger, that kind of implication,
that kind of result, under 55 you have a problem. I'm
not saying this one does. I'm saying it walks right up
to that.

MR. DOMENICO: This is a little similar to
the discussion we had a couple weeks ago where Mr.
Grueskin was on the other side. That just because -- it
seems to me, clearly, if they had just come in and
proposed Subsection (1) of this without any 6f the
details that we would have no argument that it's a single
subject, even though it would potenfially'impact the
civil service section, which I do think if it clearly --
1f the effect was definitely to have that, that might be
the kind of thing that people would be surprised and
misled about.

But since I don't think it does that, the

fact that they have gone on to spell out some of the

2007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #67
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details, I think they’'re entitled to do that rather than

having to leave it up to courts or the legislature to
spell certain things out. That Subsection (1), to me, is
clearly a single subject, even though it would have very
broad effects.

And then the rest of it, they're entitled to
define the terms, just as I think I felt the proponents a
couple weeks ago were entitled to define certain terms,
rathér than leaving it up to others.

But I think I understand where you're going,
that some of these impacts may be hidden is the real
problem, not so much that it will have a lot of impact,
but that you would be surprised to learn of them. 2and I
don't quite see it.

MR. HOBBS: And I actually think I agree
with Mr. Cartin and Mr. Domenico. You know, I think it's
good to bring up Number 55. I think it is a troubling
case and you could -- you know, but I think in this case,
I think both Mr. Cartin and Mr. Grueskin explaiﬁ to my
satisfaction héw it's a little different.

And I think it has to do with the fact that
the complexity in Number 55 led to hidden effects that I
think are really not pressing here. T mean, I'm looking
at this as more of a relatively simple measure, in a way.

I mean, it has a lot of effects and a lot of major




Frsepp——
p e

oot
e r o

—.‘_‘.._.,
-

[

[Ep e —
e

prp

[

Rpbe s on g

[ )

Title Board Hearing Z007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #62

10

11

12

- 13

14

15

16

i7

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

75

effects. But I don't see it as a complex measure in the
same way that I view -~ that the court, I think, viewed
the measure in Number 55.

I think it is a single subject, you know,
and there's other court cases that I think supported the
idea that this is a single subject. I mean, one of the
court cases is 1999-2000 Number 256, which dealt with
citizen management of growth, 12 P.3d 246.

And one of the things that the court said in
that case is that -- and I think this is a quote, "So
long as the proposal encompasses a single subject, even
if the subject is general, it does not violate the
constitution.™

And the court alsc said in that case, "We
have never held that just because a proposal may have
effects or that it makes policy choices that are
inevitably interconnected, that it necessarily violates
the single-subject requirement."”

And the latter part that quote, I take to
heart with respect to the mediation provision of the
pfoposal. I don't know that that's inevitably connected,
but as Mr. Domenico said, I think it's a choice that the
proponents can make as far as how they want the main
feature to be carried out. And that seems, in my mind,

not to violate the single-subject requirement.
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So I think it sounds like we pretty much

agree that this may constitute a single subject. So I'1]
accept a motion, if there is one.

MR. DOMENICO: I move that we find that it's
a single subject.

MR. HOBBS: I'1ll second that. Any further
discussion? If not, all those in favor say "aye."

MR. DOMENICO: Aye.

MR. CARTIN: A?e.

MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, "no."™ That
motion carries three to zero. Then let's proceed to
consider the drafts. Ms., Gomez will project on the
screen in the room the staff draft.

Mr. Grueskin, have you had a chance to look
at the staff draft, and do you have any comments?

MR. GRUESXIN: I have, Mr. Chairman. I
would like te give you a markéd—up version. This one, T
actually haven't, as you will see, done all that much
violence to this staff draft.

I'1l tell you, I made just, I think, three
or four changes. One, I took the defining just cause and
put it behind the primary provision, which has been
referred tec as Subsection (1).

I, in the next clause, tried to make -- I

didn't substantively change it, but I tried to make it a
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little bit more clear in terms of the written
documentation reguirement.

Then I tried to combine the next two
phrases, because it seems to me there was an awful lot of
repetition, if vyou will. I also made it clear that the
mediator can assess costs as well as award attorneys
fees. But other than that, I think the staff did its
job, and we will ask that the board accept the title that
I've indicated or help Mr. Friednash . l .

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Any questions for Mr.
Grueskin?

Mr. Friednash, do you have any coﬁments
eitﬁer on the staff draft or Mr. Grueskin's proposed
changes?

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you, again. We have
some concerns again and don't believe that this is a
fair, clear, and accurate title. And not Just to be
redundant, but let me kind of point out some of those
things.

Ultimately, the overriding problem is,
again, that we believe voters are going toc be enticed to
vote for a measure not realizing how its enactment is
going to deprive them of other things or how it impacts
their lives.

- And this board is not -- and obviously you
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should be considering the public confusion that's going

to be created by this title or a misleading title.

You're not precluded from adopting language that explains
to the voters and the signers of the petition how the
initiative fits in the concept of existing law, even
though that specific language is not found in the text of
the proposed initiative.

This does not clearly reflect the true
intent and meaning of this proposal, which is to
eliminate at-will employment. It doesn't fully express
how that is then replaced with this new legal standard
for terminating and suspending employees.

It doesn't express the fact that it has
redefined the definition of just cause, nor does it
provide a definition of just cause, which I think is
important when voters look at this. I realize it needs
to be brief, but I think the definition should be in
there. There's a lot of —- I can think of a plethora of
situations where this would affect voters in a way that
they would be confused by.

It doesn’'t, we don't think, provide any
discussion of how this applies to state workers as well.
Obviously that's a direct import. This applies to all
employees. And that was a question that this board had

with respect to initial discussion of the initiative
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itself and the fact that it .does, in fact, apply.

The guestion is who does it apply to. It
does not indicate it applies to all employees. It
doesn’t indicate its intent to eliminate access to the
court and due process rights and the shift of elimination
of the state personnel system.

The proposal uses mediation, which we think
that's a clear misnomer. And along those lines, why it's
a misnomer should be identified here too, which is, the
mediator's decision is final. That is not a mediation.
That's arbitration. It's more of a catchy phrase in
concept than arbitratioen.

And for those reasons, I think this board
should examine to what degree the use of mediation in
this title and even the term "just cause” without a
definition can be used as kind of a catch phrase.

It doesn't discuss elimination_of
employees -- or employer's right to contract with
employees, because it is replacing that traditional
systemn. .

Those are just generally the reasons why we
don't think it's fair, clear, accurate and will mislead
voters. I am very, very concerned about the public
confusion that will be created by this title. And

without a pretty substantial overhaul, this doesn't get
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us there, in our view. Happy to answer any guestions if
you have any.

MR. HOBBS: Questions for Mr. Friedrnash?

MR, DOMENICO: No. But he raised a couple
of points I would like to ask Mr. Grueskin about, I
think.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. Mr. Grueskin;

MR. DOMENICO: One is just, isn't Mr.
Friednash right, that this really isn't mediation; it's
arbitration?

MR. GRUESKIN: I think that the conversation
thet I had with -- I think it was Mr. Hobbs that the
point. of this mediation was that it promotes a process.
It has time lines. It has finality. And then that
mediator’'s decision is final, but we haven't precluded
any other remedies provided. I think you pointed that
out teo me, Mr. Domenico.

MR. DOMENICO: Yeah. That sounds to me
like -- I mean, anytime -- mediators, as I undeérstand it,
generally try to get the parties to come to an agreement;
and if they don't, then they go fight it out somewhere
else. Whereas arbitrators do what is being done here,
which i1s the two parties come in and present their
evidence, and then the arbitrator makes a decision. I'm

not sure it makes too big of a difference. I'm just
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MR. GRUESKIN: But as was pointed out,
typically arbitration is -- you know, curtails other
remedies,

MR. DOMENICO: Right.

MR. GRUESKIN: There's no curtailment here.
So if we used arbitration, arguably the signal we would
send would be exactly the wrong one.

MR. POMENICO: Okay. I don't think
that's -- whichever word is used, I think it's ~- I'm not

sure it's misleading. I'm not sure the people outside
the legal profession andvpeople who pay attention to
baseball off-season would know much about an arbitration.
It doesn't cause a problem. I'm just kind of making sure
I understand that.

Then the other only == the one good point T
thought worth discussing, at least, that Mr. Friednash
brought up -- given that we've already sert of decided
that had all these effects, to the extent they're
subsumed within there, are not really our problem to deal
with -~ I do wonder whether it would be a good idea to
provide some of the definition of just cause.

And T'm not sure if it is or is not, but do
you think there's any danger from your point of view if

we don't that this will be found to be sort of an

81
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MR. GRUESKIN: I listened to arguments from
Mr. Friednash, and I thought about this issue. I think
it's important to note first that Subsection {(2) says,
"For purposes of this section.” So it's not like you're
amending —- in the abortion case, they amended the
definition, and it had systemwide effects. That's not
what's going on-here.

That having been said, I don't have a
problem with jus£ cause being reflected in the title in
terms of definition. T think that's -~ I don't think

it's pivotal any more than it would be reqguired to

delineate the effects of the measure, which the court

said you don't have to do. But I sure wouldn't object to

that.

MR. HOBBS: Let me raise an angle with that
question. I guess initially I was thinking we didn't
need to define Jjust cause. We didn't even need to say
that the measure defines just cause. 1 mean, just cause
is a pretty simple concept, and it has to do with
employee misconduct or poor performance or semething.

And the more I think about it, I guess
I'm —— T mean, it does look like most of the elements of
the definition of just cause are along those lines, you

know, poor employee performance.or conduct. And, in

2007-2008#57 and 2007-2008 #62
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fact, I think maybe all of them arguably, until you get

to the last two, one of them is -- has nothing -- well,
the last two have really nothing to do with the employee.
There's filing of bankruptcy by employer or, I think;
laying off a percentage of the workforce. |

And 1t makes some sense to deal with those
as potentially just cause, but théy're not -- 1 mean,
first of a;l, I'm not sure that the reader would think of
those things. But in particular, the result that I think
might be surprising that an employer could not lay off
less than 10 percent of their workforce is pretty
significant.

And I'm wondering or feeling maybe the need
to' somehow address that, and I don't know whether it's
sort of like explain what the definition of just cause is
and work it into that or whether to accept that most of
the definition of just cause is unsurprising.

But just include a clause that says that
simultaneous discharge of less than 10 percent of a
workforce is not just cause, and just go straight to the
heart of the matter. But like I say, one way or the
other, 1'm inclined to think that we need to say
something about the fact that an employer cannot lay off
less than 10 percent. Do you have any further thoughts

about that?
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MR. GRUESKIN: Well, I originally didn't

believe that the reference to defining just cause was
necessary. But in light of the nature of this measure, I
thought it was appropriate. And I think it's a signal to
voters that this is something to attend to, that you're
going to want to know what just cause is.

And I suppose you could find a way of
summarizing (A) through (F) in terms of employee
misconduct or something of that nature. But (G) isn't
necessarily an employment-related infraction; and
therefore, it seems to me it kind of falls in the
category of the bankruptcy issue or the 10 percen;
discharge or suspension. So, you know, if you wahted to
kind of group those four issues together, I suppose that
would kind of cover the waterfront for you.

MR. HOBBS: Well, we could maybe say,
"Defines just cause to include” -- and agaln, T don't
have the right language, but -- various forms of emplovyee
peor performance or misconduct, comma; and two or three
others. |

MR. GRUESKIN: Or you could kind of use that
sumnary and, you know, include —— as you pointed ocut, (H)
and (I) is kind of eccnomic circumstances affecting the
employer; so that you can be somewhat brief, but it also

sends a signal to voters that there is -- there are going
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to be just cause elements that are emplovyee—-driven, and
there are going to be some that are employer-driven.

MR. HOBBS: Okay. Discussion by the board?
Mr. Cartin.

MR. CARTIN: Mr. Chairman, to play out your
suggestion along with Mr. Grueskin's comments, would one
approach be -- on Mr. Grueskin's draft -- to add on to
the new underlined language defining just cause, is that
where ?ou would suggest adding clarifying or additional
lénguage to the effect that defining just cause as .

I'm focusing on Mr. Grueskin's kind of three categories:
performance -- including performance, and (G) is criminal

conduct, and then (H}) and (I) can probably be grouped

under economic circumstances or business ~- well, it
wouldn't be business. Economic . . . Finding just
cause

MR. DOMENICO: Just from my perspective, if
you're going to do this, I think that Mr. Hobbs is right.
That it probably should specifically include something
about the 10 percent, because I think if it just said
something about economic difficulties of the employer or
something along those lines, that would be probably, I
think, misleading.

In the sense that it would give people the

idea that basically an employer could lay someone off

85
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anytime they had an economiec justification for it.
Whereas that 10 percent limit is specifically designed,
it seems to me, to eliminate that defense and —- unless
you lay off 10 percent.

MR. CARTIN: Fair to say there are three
options, then: To go ahead and leave it as defining just
cause and the voter is put on notice that just cause is
defined somewhere and they need to go and look; to go
ahead and list -- défining just cause and list (A)
through (I), including the text of (I) on the 10 percent;
or the third option 1s to somehow lump them into three ox
fogr categories and try to come up with éome general
terminology.

And what I'm hearing from vyou, Mr. Domenico,

is that option three has the danger of potentially

MR. DOMENICO: Yeah. Unless you say
something pretty specific about that. 10 percent, I think
it does.

MR. CARTIN: Well, I guess just because of
the impact -- this may not be the best grounds to resist
the particular change, and I'm open to being persuaded
otherwise.

Just the impact on the length of the trailer

to include items {(A) through (I} specifically and spell
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out what just cause is, rather than -~ instead of saying
defining just cause, I guess I would lean -- and I
understand the discussion here and the argument.

I guess right now I would lﬁan to keeping
defining just cause and not highlightingkone or more of
the various circumstances that constitute just cause to
the excluéion of others.

MR. DOMENICO: I think either it should be
left, or I do think we could cfaft something that lumps
basically (A) through (G) together as poor performance or
misconduct by the employee; and then, comma, filing of
bankruptcy by the employer, comma, simultaneous discharge
or suspension of 10 percent or more of the employers
workforce in Colorado.

Something along those lines that basically
makes three groups but specifically refers to the -- lays
out the tworeconomic ones. I guess it's really two
groups, but both of the economic cones are kind of spelied
out separately.

That's the onlyvother option I see to either
spelling them all out, which I don't think is necessary;
and I agree that it would sort of muck things up.

Leaving it, I suppose that, you know, you could make the
argument that that puts you on notice that if you care

what —- how just cause is defined, you should look at it.
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But, you know, Mr. Hobbs said when he first
saw that he thought just cause had kind of a fairly
readily acceptable definition, but that this actual
definition doesn't quite meet with what sort of was in
his head. I mean, it's got some specifics that aren't
really what you necessariiy would think is part of just
cause.

Sc my recommendation probably would be to
include sort of the misconduct idea, miscoﬁduct or poor
performance, bankruptcy or 10 percent layoffs would
probably be the direction I would go. I could be talked
into just leaving it. Although I think that's a risk
that it would be mislieading or incomplete.

MR. HOBBS: Let me attempt to put some
language out there, and then we can decide. I think I
would like to work off the screen, and then we can take
Mr. Grueskin's suggestions and work them into what we

have on the screen so that everybody can see the proposed

changes.

I guess 1 would propose in the second line
moving -- as Mr. Grueskin suggests, moving that phrase
"defining just cause.” First, let's just move it. You

know, cut it and paste it so that it comes off the next
clause, which I think is after the semicolon in line 4.

And then -- so it just says defining just cause.

88 -
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S0 I'll just take a run at this. Defining
Jjust cause to mean specified types of employee misconduct
and substandard job performance, comma, the filing of
bankruptcy by the employer, comma.

And I'm just going to quote from the
measure, I think. "Thus, the simulténeous discharge or
sﬁspension of 10 percent or more" -- add "the." I'm
sorry. The simultaneous discharge or suspension of 10
percent or more of the employer's workforce in Colora&o,
semicolon.

There's some things I don't particularly
like, but I think that follows kind of the concept that
we talked about that Mr. Domenico referred to. . There's
the employee problems that one might expect, I think. I
just don't remember seeing surprises there, and then
there's the two economic conditions that would allow
suspension or discharge.

MR. DOMENICO: I think that accurately and
thoroughly reflects what the measure does. It's not
poetry, but these aren't usually.

MR. HOBBS: Mr. Grueskin or Mr. Friednash,
if you have any comments, you're welcomé to make them.

MR. FRIEDNASH: My only comment is --

MR. HOBBS: 1If you are, you need to come to

the microphone, though. Thank you.

2007-2008 #57 and 2007-2008 #62
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"move that change.
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MR. FRIEDNASH: Mr. Friednash, the only
comment I make 1s, you may want an "or” instead of "and."
Where it says, "and the simultaneous discharge," you may
want to say "and/or” or "or". That's my only comment.

MR. HOBBS: Which one? I was struggling
with the conjunction myself. Which ocne? '

MR. FRIEDNASH: Where it says, "The filing
of bankruptcy by the employer and the simultaneous
discharge or suspension,” you may want to put "or" there
or "and/or.”" |

MR. HOBBS: Okay. 1I'm okay with that. I

MR. DOMENICO: (Nodded head.}
M5. GOMEZ: So just change it to "or"?

MR. HOBBS: Yes. I guess I1'll go ahead and

MR. DOMENICO: 1I'll second it.

MR. HOBBS: Any further discussion? If not,
all those in favor, say "aye."

MR- CARTIN: Aye.

MR. DOMENICO: Aye.

MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, ™no." That
motion carries three to zero. Are there other suggested
changes to the staff draft? I think Mr. Grueskin had

some. Maybe work through them if anybody wants to offer
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MR. DOMENICO: I think those are all,
actually, pretty good. I don't know if you want me to
work through on what's now line 7. After "requiring an
employer to provide,"™ insert "to an employee.” And then
after "written documentation,"” add "of the basis for his
discharge or suspension." And then basically delete the
rest of that clause through "suspended."

And then in line 10 after "mediation," add
"to seek an,"” and then delete ~- including the semicolon
this time.. Delete all the way through "just cause to.“.

And then after "award, " insert "of."
Actually, ves, right there on 11. And then after "back
wages, " delete "or™; insert "and.” And then delete "to
the employee" at the end of that line. Leave the
semicolon in.

And then on lineé 12, after "allowing the
mediator to," insert "assess costs for his services to
the losing party and.” 1I'll move those changes.

MR. CARTIN: Second.

MR. HOBBS: Discussion? If not, all those
in favor say "aye."

MR. CARTIN: Aye,

MR. DOMENICO: Aye.

MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, "no."” That

2007-2008 #57.and.2007:2008 #62
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motion carries three to zero. Further changes to the
staff draft?

MR. CARTIN: Just from the drafting
standpoint, I guess I just note that the measure isn't
gender neutral, and the title reflects that.

MR. HOBBS: Actually, I noticed it in the
measure but where is it in this titles?

MR. DOMENICO: "Basis for his discharge."

MR. CARTIN: On line 9, "who believes he was
discharged.” And line 12, "assess costs for his
services.”

MR. HOBBS: The measure has that, so . . .

MR. CARTIN: Actually, the measure says the
mediator shall -- I don't want to belabor this. But just
for the record, "The mediator shall assess costs for his
or her services to the losing party."®

MR. HOBBS: Is there a motion to adopt the
staff draft as amended?

MR. DOMENICO: I make that motion.

MR. HOBBS: 1I'll second that. Tﬁere's been
enough changes I'm going to read it into the record
before we vote.

So the title would read: An amendment to
the Colorado Constitution concerning just cause for

action against an employee by an employer, comma, and,
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comma, in connection therewith, comma, prohibiting the
discharge or suspension of an employee by an employer
unless the employer has first established just cause,
semicolon, defining, quote, just cause, end quote, to
mean specified types of employee misconduct and
substandard job performance, comma, the filing of
bankruptcy by the employer, comma, or the simultanecus
discharge or suspension of 10 percent or more of the
enployer's workforce in Colorado, semicolon, requiring an
employer to provide to an employee written documentation
of the basis for his discharge or suspension, semicclon,
allowing an employee who believes he was discharged or
suspended without just cause to apply for mediation to
seek an award of back wages and reinstatement, semicolon,
allowing the mediator to assess costs for his services to
the losing party and award attorneys fees to the
prevailing party, semicolon, and autheoriZing the general
assembly to enact legislation to facilitate the purposes
of this amendment, period.

And the ballot title and submission clause
would read the same except in the form of a question.
Any further discussion? So the motion is to adopt those
titles. All those in favor say "aye."

MR. CARTIN: Aye.

MR. DOMENICO: Avye.
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MR. HOBBS: All those opposed, "no."” That

motion carries three to zero, and the time is 11:44.
We're adjourned -- we're in recess until -~ 1:302 1:30
this afternoon.

WHEREUPON, the within proceedings were
concluded at the approximate hour of 11:44 a;mJ this 20th

day of February, 2008.
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1 PROCEEDINGS 1 and directors, again, high managerial agents or

2 MR. HOBBS: Let's go on to the pext 2 ermployees alike.

3 apendaitem. This is 2007-2008, Nomber 57, 3 1t basically creates a private right of

4 criminal and civil Hability of businesses and 4 acHon in each Colorado resident. So we have three

5 individuals for business activities. The time is 5 milkion private attomney generals in the state. They

6 11:00 am And now sitting as the designee of the 6 don't need tobe injured. As long astheyhave a

7 Director of the Office of Legistative Legal 7 $156 filing fee, they can file a civil complaint in

%  Services is Dan Cartin. We have a matien for £ the state, and may be filing separate and distinct.

9 rehearing thal -- o written motion for rehearing 9 There may be a Jot of complaints being filed over the
10 submitted by Mr. Friednash. So I'd like to hear 10 same issues, that somebody just reads something in a i
11 from him fivst. 11 newspaper over. i
12 Mr. Friednash, if you'd like to 12 And the standard, unlike the critinal B
13 identify yourself for the record. We'veread your 13 standard, beyond a réasonable doubt, the civil
14 brief, but whatever highlights you'd like to 14 standard is a preponderance of the evidence. The
15 stress, we'd appreciate that. 15 central theme of this topic is simply, you know,

16 MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you. Good reorning. | 16 Dusiness liability, and it falls kind of - and 1

17 Doug Friednash appearing on behalf of Joe Blake, We 117  think that's what we discussed last week. And]l

18 filed the rotion Tor rehearing. I'm not going to 18 think simply characterizing the topic as business

19  regurgitate my motion for rehearing, you'l] be bappy 19 Tlisbility is too broad and general of a concept to

20 to bear. Twill try to make my comments as brief as 20 satisfy the single-subject requirement. r§

21 possible. And I want to focms on a few things. 21 And [ want to kind of go through some *

22 First, just to recap what the measure does: It it 22 examples, ] think, that are kind of indicative

23 does — and | know we've talked before. 23 of - of why [ think the public is going to be i

24, I'm not going to focus on the third 24 surprised by this, why they're poing to be confused  §

25 component of this, which is what 1 felt was the third 25 about this, and why il's misleading. A tow-level i
Page 3 Page 5 |

i sobject, that being this expenditure issue, but I am i employee who is cognizant that the company he works

2 going to focus on the first two, which are it takes 2 for may be polluting or is poltuting somewhere, but

3 an existing criminal statute and 3 imposes eriminal 3 it'smot that person’s responsibitities to do

4 Yizbility to businesses — that's the current law — 4  anything under current law.

5 that have eithey a passive act of knowing and not 5 Current lawr doesn't provide a basis of

6 doing anything or don't specifically perform an act 6 Lability. This law does. And it imposes upon every

7 required by Jaw. 7 person that’s aware of something like thisto filea

4 And it extends that o all employees of 3 $ notice with the Attomey General's office. 'm not g

% company, low-level employees, HR, 1 thirk agents, 9 sure how that's going to proceed. But they have to *
10 which wonld probably include independent contractors, | 10 notify the Atiomey General in order te protect _
11 officers and directors. And as you know, a criminal 11 themselves against being charged eivilly or g
12 statute has a different standard, which is beyond 2 12 criminally. ¢
13 reasonable doubt. And the -- the stakuie itself has 13 Hlegal immigration is ancther good A
14 asubsection dealing with fines that only seem to 14  example. You could believe - you could have 3
15 apply to businesses, not the rest of these -- this 15 kmowledge that the company you work for may be hiring
16 universe of people, the employees, €f cetera, high 16 illegal immigrants, you could be an HR director, you l
17 managerial agents and so forth. And we believe 17 may receive some false information from an employer ‘
18 thats one very specific and distinct subiect. 18 thatyou may not know is filse, or maybe you work for |
19 The second one is it 2llows any Colorado 19  the HR person, or you're just aware of somebody £
20 resident to file 2 civil lawsuit based on a passive 20 coming in your office that you think is an jliegal
21 act of knowing and not deing anything or not 21 immigrant. That's another classic example of where a
22  performing an act required by law. And, again, this 22 litigation can come. And it's not jost-eivil :
23 s an expansion now. This civil private right of  ~ 23 litigation; #'s civil Hitigation. L
24  action creates Hability to business, thal’s new, 24 1 think the issue is -- is disconcening ;
25 obvigusly, the employees of l!'na_:sgusiness, officers 25 fer a variety of reasons. And obviously if you look ;

fazan T = .
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1 al 35 -~ I know that this panel just discussed that, 1 understand the difference between agents and the very |t
2 the board just discussed that in relationship to the 2 specific set of people that jt applies to in the
3 tastissue. You had the concept of nonemergency 3 criminal context.
4 services and this category concept of nonemergency 4 Secondly, it refers to in the civil
5 services, and the court found there were two 5 conduct, civil context, that you ¢an be charged based
6 unrelated purposes that were grouped under the broad | ¢ on criminal conduct: I think criminal conduct is a
7 theme of restricting nonemergency seivices, 7 catch phrase, a slogan, and I also think it, again,
8 decreasing taxpayer expenditures that benefit 8 doesn't capture all of the civil aspects of this
9 welfars, the members of a tarpeted group, and denying | 9  statute, 2nd the different ways you can be sued, not
10 access to other administrative services. 10 just for, you know, garden variety crirminal conduct,
il In re: Public Waters -- Inrer Public 11 but for violating civil wrongs, tortious conduct, you
12 Righis and Waters to — these are just a couple of 12 know, failure to wam, being aware that there's some
13 cases P've highlighted in the motion -- the court 13 violation in 2 company and not reporting it. These
14 found that grouping distinct purposes water 14  ase new civil things; they're not necessaniy
15  conservation district elections and the public trust 15 criminal,
16 doctzine under the theme of water didn't satisfy the 16 But I think the title i misleading
17 single subject because the connection was too broad | 17 insofar that the voters are going to be surprised
18 and general. And there are other examples. 18 that it encompasses these things. And, ultimately,
19 This measute, you know, does those two 19 it--it fadle-to express the true meaning and intent
20 separate, distinct things, [ mean, they impose 20 ol the proposed initiative, because it doesn't
21 criminal liability on one hand and extend that fora 21 adequately apprise the voters of the extent and
22 variety of - of things, and new substantive crimes 22 effect of these initiatives reached. And it really
23 that I think the public is not going to understand or 23 is sweeping reform here that we're talking about; and
24  beawarc of They'rc going to be hidden fom them. 24 very separate and distinet reform in-both the
25 Criminal liability can be based on — the 25 criminal context and a civil context.
Page 7 Page 9 £
1 criminal component can be satisfied by a civil wrong. I The -~ we believe that another issue is :
2 In other words, I think that a -- an crrployee of a 2 that the proponents amended both the title, and more
3  company who breaches a fduciary duty, an employeeof | 3 imporiantly the text; I think, without baving this
4 acompany who has a duty of fidelity or duty to wam 4 reviewed by legislative legal services:and
5 or duty to act in good faith, these basic duties can 5 Tlegislative counsel. That there was suobstantive
6 be prosecuted in z criminal manper. So it expands 6 titles, substantive changes to the definition of who
7 dnd, I think, creates potentially dozens of riew 7 this applied to. It was associated persons, which i
& crimes. 8 was a much narrower group of individuals, and then &
9 The civil component is — creates, again, 9 this got expanded to include, basically, all :
10z nomber of new civil wrongs that can be created and 10  employees of the company.
11 prosecuted basically by any resident of the state in 1 The purpose is to allow legislative
12 the court system, wilh the damages from that going to 12 counse! to kind of analyze the legal services,
I3 the peneral fund, which are then exempted from state 13 analyze these measures, look at theny, comoment on
14 spending lirmits. 14 them, and also to allow the public to understand
15 The concern I have with respect — and I'm 15 these at an early stage, and that didn't happen. And
16 going o, in the interest of time, address 16 1think for those reasons, it needs to be sent back
17 ‘everything, I think, at once. I think that will help 17 aswell. Sol will imit my comments. [ think we've ’
18 things go a little soother. But one of the concems 18  pretty thoroughly discussed our position with respect £
19 1had is in seiting the title, you know, we -- this 19 1o this issne in the motion, and T'm more than happy |
20 ‘board definjtively talked about how the criminat 20  to answer any guestions you may have at this time.
21 conduct applies to - very specifically the gronp of 21 MR. HOBBS: Are fhere any questions for
22  people that it applies to, all employees. But with 22 My Friednash? Mr. Domenico.
23 reference to the civil conduct, we just stated that 23 MR. DOMENICO: Could you just clarify what
24 it applies to agenis. 1think people will be 24  voumeant by the - this brings in a bench of civit
25 confused about that, first of 2ll. That they won't 25 conduct that's civil and not just criminal conduct.
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t Imean k.. 1 it Andif Fm wrong, then this is just confusing.
2 MR. FRIEDNASH: Sure. 2  Because to me the plain language of this, which is
3 MR. DOMENICO: Go ahead. 3 confusing, you're right, it is in the law, but when
4 MR. FRIEDNASH: When we wereherelast | 4 you start applying it to new, separate and distinct
5 week, counsel for the proponents pointed out this 5 situations and people, you're opening up new areas
6 applies - this - this is intended to apply to the 6 and new substantive issues and new substantive crimes
7 passive act of knowing and not deing anything or 7 and new civil claims for relief.
8 extending or not performing an act required by law. | 8 MR. DOMENICO: It does say in LA that the
9 As 1 read the definitions under the o duty that we're talking about is one imposed on the
10 current definition of crimnal lability of business 10 business entity. And so1 guess | would read that as
11 entities, I believe it includes any type of duty that 11 not extending to kind of the separate duties that
12 isowed. Ithinkit mcludes - and I think he's 12 officers have such as an individual fiduciary duty.
13 articulated it as such anyway, but not performing i3 Butam] - do you disagree with that?
14 acts required by law. 1mean, you have required by | 14 MR. FRIEDNASH: 1 do only in the sense
15 law in the employment context by way of example, 15 that in litigating these kinds of cases from a civil
16 duties of good faith and fair dealing, duty of 16 prospective, duties employ -- that apply to
17 loyalty, duty of fidelity to your company. Thoscare | 17 businesses also apply to their employees, so itdoes
18  all civil issues that are required by law. There's 18 create separate and distinct issues that fall within
19 also fiaud fssues as well that can be created inkind | 19 the purview of duties owed to business entities and
20 ofa civil context. I think that's the extent of 20 of themselves. The business owes a particular duty
21 this. It applies in a civil context because in here 21  towam, to acknowledge pollution, for example, or to
22 it discusses how the civil component is based on that } 22 deal with poliation and not poliute. And that
23 same type of conduct. That's ilhuminated in 1A 23 extends to all of the employees.
24 and--and 1B. 24 And maybe within that construcs, the
25 MR. DOMENICO: Even -- [ agree with you |25 employees have separate and distinet obligations with
Page 11 Page 13 d
I that that 1A is kind of confusing about exactly what 1 respect to that particular duty. Semebody opens the :
2 itincludes. But thal's already part of the statute, 2 newspaper and they believe that
3 right? Themeasure isn't chapging that. Sotothe 3  there's — they read about X carporation dumped !
4 exlent certain conduct that you or | might not 4 pollution in a stream, and they live near thas
5 consider crimimal is made criminal, that's in -~ 5 stream, or maybe they don't; they just want to file
6 that's done by the current statite. 6 anaction. And they file a lawsuit, and they can
7 What's changed -- the -- what they're 7  riame every employes of that cotnpany, and — znd this
8 changing here is who can be held liable for that, 8 wilt be sorted out later. '
9 right, and then what the penalties are by extending 9 MR. DOMENICO: That's ail I have.
10 civil penalties, ight? I mean, they're not changing 10 MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin. ]
1t the type of condnet that is brought within it or are 11 MR. CARTIN: Mr. Friednash, I just wanted |
12 they? 1mean, maybe [ should ask Mr. Grueskin this, | 12 to follow up on & couple of your arguments. And the
I3 but would the extension of this to individuals change 13  first one — or, well, ene of them is -~ goes to the
14  the range of conduet, I guess, is kind of what 'm — 14 language, the amendment to 18-1-606, Subsection 1, E
i35 MR. FRIEDNASH: It's a great question. 15 which says, "As amended by the measurs of business -
16 MR. DOMENICO: — what I'm asking. 16 entity, agent, or managerial agent are guilty of an #
17 MR, FRIEDNASH: And 1 think the answeris | 17 offense if” Ard as! understand your argument, it's
18 —isyes. It effectively changes things. Because 18 part - it's part of the - part of your brief --
19 corporations, businesses may owe different dutiesand | 19 your motion going to resubmittal. it wasa change
20 obligations under law than officers and directors to 20 made post a reviewing comment,
21  their shareholders, to board members, to their 21 As | understand your argument,
22 employees, or employees may hold with respect to each | 22 you're -- you're arguing that that ought to read
23 other and obligations they have to the compary. 23 either a business entity, agent or high managerial
24 So I think it does open Pandora's box in 24 agent - agent "is" rather than "are” guilty of an
25 25

that context. And that's one of the problems with

offense if -- or a business entity agent and high
o S AT
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1 managerial agent is guilty of an offense if, And1 1 directors, officers and employees and agenits who
2 didn't pick this up the first time the measure was 2 formulated & business pokicy — policies or supervise §
3 through, but the word is, is in that introductory 3 employees. That seems to supgest that this 4
4  paragraph and does not appear stricken. And I'vegot | 4 initiatjve only applies to those employees who
5 to confess that a5 it's written, I'm -- I'm s little 5 formulate policies or supervise employees, and that's
6 confused as to what it means as well, but could you 6 not what it does, and that's another problem. As you
7 maybe just touch on that. 7  read that, just -- as it's drafied today, it does not
8 MR. FRIEDNASH: Yezh. I'mnotsurelcan | 8  clearly delineate that you dor't have to just
9  do a betier job than what you just did. I mrean, 9  supervise employees or — or — or foromilate business
10 thal's the problem I have isolated. Andit's — 10 policies to have this supplied to you. Sol think
11 again, T don't think I can be move articulate than it  that's a second problem within it,
12 that — that explanation, as -- as you set it up. 12 MR. CARTIN: [ guess I'd just say I
13 MR. CARTIN: And then the second question | 13 disagree with that, and I -think that we specifically
14 Ihave just to follow up on — T think your arpument 14 addressed that issuc af the last meeting, And
15 in paragraph — if's Section 2 - in Section 3, 15 that's —that's why it's crafted that way.
16 Paragraph A where you mention this that the variance | 16 MR. FRIEDNASH: Tunderstand.
17 nmplies more of a civil component — this goestothe | 17 MR. CARTIN: So that the formulating
18 actual sitle of the measure where the title currently 18 business policy applies just to the agent.
19  says, in the trailer specifically, "Following in 19 MR. FRIEDNASH: But my concern is voter £
20 conmection therewith, extending ciminal Habilityto | 20 confusion. Somebody reading this could easily jump §
21 business entities, directors, officers and employees 21 and believe that that only applies to those people d
22 and agents who fonmulated business's policies or 22 that fall within that class of categories, and 1 4
23 supervise employees.” And then going down to 23 think it goes beyond that.
24 "Adlowing any Colerado resident to bring an action 24 MR, CARTIN: Thank you.
25 forcivil damages against a business or its-agent for [ 25 MR.HOBBS: Auny other questions? Hearing
Page 15 Page 17
t  such criminal conduct.” 1 nonethen. Thank vou.
2 Is your argument basically that in that 2 MR. FRIEDNASH: ‘Can 1 make just one otfier
3 second clause, the one that begins "Allowing any 3 point in passing? :
4 Colorado resident,” that instead of just having 4 MR. HOBBS: Yes, sir. ?
5 againsta business or its agent that that language 5 MR. FRIEDNASH: You asked asto A and 1
6 cught to conform to the language in the first clause 6 whether that just applies to businesses. ] think the 4
7 following the "in connection therewith"? In other 7 wayB is written it also raises all of these ]
8 words, is it your argument that it ought to read 8 different issues of those different duties applying.
9 *consistent with the - with the measure allowing emy | 9 So they talk about acting within the scope of their
10 Colorado resident to bring an action for civil 10 employment, and Tthink that kind of raises it in
11 damapes against a business entities, directers, 1} that phirase as well. That's all 1 have.
12 officers and employees and agency who formulated | 12 MR. HOBBS: Okay. Thank you,
13 business's policies ot supervise employees?” 13 MR FRIEDNASH: Thanks. :
14 MR. FRIEDNASH: Yeah, that's partofit. | 14 MR, HOBBS: 1'd like to hearnext from :
15 And the reason being, I think the inconsistency may | 5 Mark Grueskin on behalf of the proponents.
16 confuse volers or mislead thens to think that it 16 MR. GRUESKIN: Thank you, Mr. Chairman and
17 applies to a class of people that they may not 17  Members. Mr. Friednash and I formally agreed out in
18 understand. I don't know. [ don't think voters 18 the hall that we would by not to make this a ;
19 enderstand what the term agent means. And 1 think | 19 marathon session, so Fll try to keep my comments
20 that's why you have a definition in the statute that 20 bricf. The single-subject argument is basically that :
21  explains who the agents are. 2]  there is an expanded criminal Habiliey and there are
22 And let me point out one other thing. As 22  private rights of action resulting in potential civil i
23 you just read that - you know, as a voter is going 23 actions. :
24 to read this, they're going to vead this to read that 4 1 would suggest that if the criminal/civil ;
25 it extends criminal Hability to a business enfities, 25 dichotomy becomes the basis for a.i decigion about :
5 (Pages 14 t0 17)
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1 single-subject, that there are a2 number of statutes ! corporation or the entity knows of affirmative
2 that are of suspect. And [ haven't donean - an 2 obligations under law and does nothing. In other
3 exhaustive review, but I will tell you that, for 3 words, an omission rather than a commission. There
4  instance, the anti-must statutes authorize the 4 s also lisbility. Thisis a gap filler. Andsothe
5 Attomey General to institote eriminal proceedings. 5 sweeping Hability that is suggested, in fact,
6 This was passed in 1992 as part of the same Jaw. G already potentially exists. And, therefore, the
7 There was -~ and that authority exists at 7 unknown potential I think is -- is not entirely
8 6-4-117CRS. And the same law at the same time, 8 accurate,
9 passed by the same general assembly in the same act, g The suggestion is that the statement of
10 the general assembly provided for civil — civil 10  the single subject is inaecurate, the liability for
11  damages in 6-4-114CRS. MNow, i5 a viclation of single | 11 criminal conduct of businesses. And ultimately we
12 subject providing civil and criminal penallies in the 12 getback to the issue that this really is about the
13 sameact? Well, if so, then in 2003 when the general 13 business entities' conduct and what a specific
14 assembly passed a statute requiring prompt payment of | 14 individual associated with that entity does or
15 wages to employers, it established ot 8-4-1 14 cerlain 15 doesnt do. And so it ultimately is, in fact, all
16 ¢riminal penalties. And, likewise, at 8-4-119, 16 rooted back to the -- the business entify.
17 provided for certain civil penalties, all in the same 17 Now, we coutd tweak that, and I frankly
I8 act, aliin 2003. 18  wouldn't have any problermn with doing so, but ] think
19 Additionatly, in 1990, the general 19 ultimately you could leave it the same because this
20 assembly passed a sccurities rewrite that provided 20 is net am issue that is somehow spun off to people
21  for both criminal and civil penalties in }1-51-603 21 who are unassociated with a business, Histhe
22 and 604. ! could go on and on, but you get the 22 business entitios’ criminal conduct.
23 flavor of where I'm going. [ think that the Supreme 23 The suggestion is made that criminal
24  Court has consistently said that enforcement is 2 24 conduct is a catch phrase. You've got io have some
25  subtopic of the more general subject and does not in 25 evidence, the Supreme Court has said, thatitisa
Page 19 Page 21
1 itself reflect a second subject. 1 catch phrase. And obviously the word -~ 1 don't i
2 So if-you've gat two means of enforcement, 2  think the word conduct is problematic. So the 9
3 civil and criminal, do you have a multiple subject? 3 question would be whether criminal is problematic. 3
4 [ would suggest to you that the Supreme Cotnl has 4 Andifitis, I would have no problem virtually
5 never looked at it that wey. If's looked at 5 mimicking the statute which speaks — the existing
6 initiztives that have civil and criminal remedies and & stztute — which speaks of conduct -- 1A talks about
7 found that they reflect single subjects. 7 conduct constituting the offense as does 1B, Soif
8 The suggestion is tha this is a sweeping 8  you wani to talk about conduct constituting a
9 change. And, in fact, what this is, is i's an 9 criminal offense, you can certainly do that. ;
10 extremely narrow change, as the Jegislative counsel 10 As long as ' looking at the statute, and i
11 and Office of Legislative Legal Services pointed out il  weseemto kind of be dealing with some accuracy ;
12 atour proponents’ review and comments hearing. And | 12 issues and some single-subjectissues. Ratherthan |
13 -what I'd like 10 do, Mr. Chainman, i{1'may, is 13 leave anything unaddressed, T thought we'd just kind :
14 provide you with a copy of that. 14  of make it global here. ;
15 MR. HOBBS: Thank you. 15 I think it's imporiant to role that the
16 MR. GRUESKIN: Now, I need to find my copy | 16  allegation that there are all sorts of intemal,
17 ofthat memo. On Page 3, Question 3 — 4A, they 17 corporate standards of conduct that are implicated,
18 wanted to know why in the original draft there was a 18  it's pretty much belied by the first sentence in —
19 definition of an associated person and asked bow that | 19 in one that talks about an entity or agent is guilty
20 compared with [8-1-607 that describes criminat 20 of an offense if. You can't be guilty of anything
21 Hability of an individual for corporate conduct. 21 other than a crime, at least to the best of my
22 Thereis already an affirmative legislative act that 22 knowledge. This is being done under the criminal
23 imposes individual lability for criminal acts ofa 23 statutes. Therefore, I don’t think there’s any reat
24 corporation. 24  pioblem with the expansion to some fiduciary
25 Al this statute does is say where the 25 responsibility or other civil issue, unless you can 5

T T
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I be guilty of 2 civil offense, which is not how that 1 directly from the review and comment process. [ -
2 word is typically used, nor is it how its typically 2 without getting into specific possible languags
3 understood, nor is it how it's specifically used here 3 chanpes, I think that covers the jurisdictional
4 in this statute, 4  arguments. 1f I've missed something, I'm happy to
5 Likewise, the offense janguage is 5 respond to your questions and thoughts.
6 rteplicated, not only in the first Fine, but in [ MR. HOBBS: Questions for Mr. Grueskin? :
7 Subparagraph A and Subparagraph B. Soithastobe | 7 Mr. Domenico.
8 an offense under the criminal code. And so ! hink 8 MR. DOMENICO: I just have a couple of
9 that the expanse is not nearly as broad 9 quick — guick ones. First, what — what does —
10 as — as would be sugpgested, 1) work does high managerial agent do in this? I mean,
11 The other jurisdictional issue that is 11 doesn't everything that applies to — I mean, 2s you
12 vaised is if the proponents made 2 sub - substantive | 12 said, high managerial agent to me is a subset of
13 change without giving the legislative counsel an 13 agent or employec, or it's a subset of something else
14 opportunity to consider it, that being the expansion 14 that's defined in there. And sl of the penalties
15 of the language to - let's see - the expansion of 15 and all of the provisions apply equally 1o everyone.
16 the language to agent. But 1 would point out foryou |16 s there something I'm missing that there's 3 reason
17 atthe top of Page 4 on the review and conduci memo | 17 there’s a high managerial agent is in there at all? E
18  that I've handed out, that the specific question that 18 MR. GRUESKIN: Are you asking about in the
19 was raised by staff was quote, "What is the 19  original statute or --
20 difference between the definition of associate — 20 MR. DOMENICO: Well, yezh, or either. |
21  associated person and agent in Section 18-1-606 21 mean, does -- are there-tross -- cross references to
22 Colorado Revised Stahite?” 22  that elsewhere in the statutes that -- that -
23 So the parallel or lack of parallel or the 23 MR. GRUESKIN: To be honest with you, ¢
24 ovestap or the inconsistency between the definition 24  Mr. Domenico, I haven't gone back and Hstened to the §i
25  that was proposed and the existing statutory 75 legislative tapes. My guess is that that was somé
Papge 23 Page 25
1  definition was raised by staff in the review and 1 really pood idea that sprang out of a legislative B
2 comment hearing. That they didi't suggest specific 2  conmmittee hearing or perhaps a debate. ButI've
3 language doesn't mean that they didn't bring up the 3 looked at the statute to see if there's different
4  definition of agent, of which high managerial agent 4 treatment of an agent -- I
5 ispart. 5 MR. DOMENICO: Right.
6 1 would note for you that Paragraph 2A in 6 MR. GRUESKIN: -- as opposed to a high
7 the existing statute is a2 combined definition, and 7 managerial agent — :
8 therefore the fact that the proponents decided not 1o 8 MR. DOMENICO: And there's not, £
9 create their own definition in this measure, but to 9 MR. GRUESKIN: — and I haven't seen that. i
10 use the definition that is already provided by 10 The proponents included both femms justtomake it §
11 statute, was at the direct suggestion of the staff. Il clear that it ~ there wasn't a conflict, that there
12 This last issuc about how the language was 12 wasn't sorne sort of carve out. Whetherthat was H
13 chosen in terms of, "A business entity, agent or high | 13 warranted, or whether they could have just used ’
14  managerial agent arc guilly of an offense if* also 14 agent -
15 sterns from the staff's specific suggestion. On 15 MR. DOMENICO: Right. <
16 Page 2 at the bottom, Question Nurber 5, the original ¢ 16 MR. GRUESKIN: --I don't -- 1 don't know.
17 language was that a business entity and associated 17 MR. DOMENICO: Yeah. Ijust find that
18 person is guilty, and the propenent’s granmmar was 18 confusing because when you read that you think, oh,
19 called into question and the suggestion was made that { 19 well, there's going te be some reason to treat 2 high
20 are shoald be used instead of is. 20 managerial agent differently than a regular employee,
21 Now, perhaps that was a mistake on the 21 and1dont see it anywhere. 3
22 part of the proponents based upon the suggestionof | 22 MR. GRUESKIN: I suppose - ] mean i
23 staff, but it was based upon the suggestion of staff. 23 obviously there is overlap because officers are both |
24 And therefore, it didn't spring from the brow of Zeus | 24 agents and high managerial agents. What is not
25 ot even from the brow of the proponents; it came 25 averiapped is any other agent in a position of ,}
7 (Pages 22 10 25)
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! comparable authority with respect fo the formulation § | mean, I think there are -~ the example we used last
2 ofbusiness policies. Sol don't kmow — 1 suppose 2 time was requirements ~ disposal requirements for
3 then because it uses the word agent, it rrust be 3 pollution, which themselves don't impose criminal —-
4 limited to-directors and enployees, as well as 4 arent — those statutes don’t necessarily say if's a
5 officers, that have that kind of role rather than as 5 crime if you don't dispose of it. They just say you
6 supgested independent contractors or consultants, 6 shall dispose of your -- your hazardous waste irs a
7 or-- I assume that the legislature meant 1o use the 7 cemain way.
2  word that it did in referring back. Soil - 8 And my reading of this is, of the current
9 MR. DOMENICO: Yeah. Ijust wonderif 9 statute is: If you fail to do that, the entity is
10 there was that one time a differential treatment of 10 then guilty of a crime as it's 1aid out in this
11 the two, because there's not. 11 section. Am] — is your understanding different
12 MR. GRUESKIN: I'm afraid I really 12 that it has to be 2 crime separately from this
13 don’t-- 13 section? That the disposal statute would have to say
14 MIL DOMENICO: Al right. 14 it's a criminal offeose not to do this?
15 MR, GRUESKIN: -- have a good answer for | 15 MR. GRUESKIN: Ithink there are two 4
16 you. 16  answers to your question. The — the broad one that ]
17 MR. DOMENICO: Okay. My — my other 17 cenainly was the basis for my statement {s reflected
18  question wes: When you were talking about whatan | 18 by what legislative staff told the proponents. On
19 offense is, you suggested that it's only an offense 19 Page 3, Question Number 4, the staff stated, quote,
20 ifit's —and maybe I'm misreading you — it's only 20 "Section 18-1-606, Colorado Revised Statutes,
21 an offense if #t's somehow otherwise an offense in 21 describes the circumstance under which a business may
22 the crirminal code. But the way Iread it is this 22 be guilty of an effense; it is not an offense
23 makes an offense subject to the criminal penalties, 23 itself”
24 end now under your proposal, civil penalties, makes a | 24 Now, presuming staff to be, you know, g
25 criminal offense anything that is an omission to 25 acourate and eredible, 1— I take that at its face q
Pape 27 Page 29 "2
1 discharge a specific duty of affirmative performance | 1 value, and therefore would suggest to you that when
2 jemposed on the business entity by law, which — which | 2  the proponents expanded the applicability of that
3 seems to me not fo require some other criminal 3 precept, that it describes the circumstance under
4 prokibition, just a specific duty trpesed on the 4 which guilt can be found, rather than a specific
5 entity by law becomes, by nature of the corrent - 5 offense that they were accurate,
& the current statete, a criminal offense, right? 6 ¥ would also suggest to you that Paragraph
7 And then the two things that | see this 7 3 talks about where businesses cornmit offenses, which &
8 reasure as doing is making individuals responsible 8 il committed by an individual would result in the H
9 for that and then alse including this civil aspect. 9 following punishment, So} think what Sub3 doesis  |¢
10 ButI don't see that it — that the current statute 10 totake - to meet your — your issue it -- it - é
11 requires that it somewhere else be defined as 2 11 corent law slready applies statutes to corporations,
12 crime. Amiwrong zbout that? 12 even if the corporations are not specificaily
13 MR. GRUESKIN: Could you rephrase that 13 referred to. And this measure doesn't change that at
14 last question. td  all, Idon'timow if that was helpfirl to you. But
15 MR. DOMENICO: And you suggested, and | {5 1~ I think that -- I mean, as 2 general matter, 1
16 maybe I just misheard, that the only things that 16 think that the staifs suggestion is comect, that :
17 amocunt to offenses under current Jaw, and we'll 17 this doesn't create specific offenses, it creates 1
18 also -- which this doesn't change according to, as I I8 circumstances under which an offense may be deemed
19 think you're saying -- under current Iaw, I thought {9 to- toocour. i
20 you suggested that there had to be some — it's only 20 MR. DOMENICO: Okay.
21  an offense under this statute if it's an offense 21 MR. HOBBS: I'mnot sure that it matiers :
22 under some other criminal prohibition. 27 tome, but I --but I'm also not sure that ] agreed
23 And my reading of it is this creates the 23 with the -- the legislalive staff's interpretation,
24 criminal prohibition even if the other duty that's 24 so -~ so maybe I at Jeast cught to pause kere and --
25 imposed is not necessarily couchm crirmnal. 1 ‘25 ' and try figure out f srelevant to this :
8 (Pages 20 to 29)
VSM REPORTING, LLC P 0. Box 271208, Littleton, CO 80127 (303} 979-09359

Www.vsmreporting .com




Initiative Title Setting Review Board Hearing Initiatives 57 and 62
3/5/2008
Page 30 Page 32

1 discussion. I mean, it looks io me like 606 does f Bul the way that [ read it -- and I kaow

2 define an offense and imposed penalties,  mean the | 2 that lime is of the essence here. But under

3 existing law. 3 currently law, under 18-1-606, under Subsection I, 2

4 1 -1 didn’t bring 607 wilh me, but I 4  business entity is guilty of an offense if either of

5  interpreted 607 to mean that — that when an 5 the conditions in 1A or 1B are met. And when you go

6 individuel does something wrong, they can't say, as 6 down to Subsection 3, there's some language that

7 long as it was in their official capacity for the 7 talks about corporations.

8 corporation or the business, that they're — that 8 MR. GRUESKIN: Right.

9 they're protected from prosecution. 9 MR. CARTIN: And then you get to the
10 In other words, if -- if they did conmit a 10 language that says for an offense committed on or
11 crime, that they can be individually prosecuted 11 after July 1, 2003, a business entity shall be
12 against the individual. Then the fact that they did 12 subject -- shall be subject to the payment of a fine
13 it in their official capacity, so to speak, was 13 and then an offénse committed by a business entity
14 basicallyno defense. So1—1just -- which seems 14 would be a misdemeanor, et cetera.
15 tobe a little different than the legislative 15 So to me you have the offense — you have
16  interpretation, because it does look to me like 606 16  the offenses set forth in 1A and 1B and you have the |
17 does define a crime and impose a penalty for—one | 17 penaliies set forth in Subsection 3. T went back and
18 business -- for business misconduct. And then the 13 looked and this statute was amended in 2003. And
19 measure exterds that crime to individuals, agents and | 19 basically what they did was everywhere where it said
20 high managenial agents under some circumstances. 20 corporation, they inserfed business entity and then
2t So I dont know if — I'm not sure that 21 created a definition of business entity. Andthe
22 this goes anywhere, but I just wanted to point out 22 language for -- in Subsection 3 for an offense
23 that ] wasn'L quite sure that I saw the legislative 23 committed on or after July 1, 2003 was added in 2003.
24 staff interpretation guite the same way. Now, 24 And if you -- I'm sure you know all of
25 they -- they know better than me, but T just didn't 25 that, Mr. Grueskin, bot I jast wanted to got that as

Page 31 Page 33

1 see it the same way. 1 part of this discussion. Sothat's how I interpret

2 MR, GRUESKIN: ¥d like to defer tothem 2 the statute now. With the amendment, the difficelty

3 too. 11 think that, you know, the title of 3 that Pmbaving, and ! -- and I recognize what this

4 Section 606 is crinmnal lisbility of businesses. 4 smff memo says in Question Number 5 there on Page 2.

5 It'smot about establishing new crimes. And] think 5 And when the -- when the measure was ]

6 certainlyin the Tabor context, the Supreme Court has | 6  submitted, the Tanguage said "business entity and -

7 looked to the titte as indicative of the — of 7 associated person is guilty.” And the question o

§ constraints to be implied upon a proposal that's 8 was— and the — the comment was — if the g

9 presented to the voters. And § think that, you know, 9 proponents intended to use the "and," then the "is” 3
10  in the same contexy, this measure would be implied. | 10 should changeto ™are.” Or if the proponents intend {
1 But 1 - I agree with you in - in ~ 11 touse "is" then it should be business entity or
12  it's ~ it may be a distinction without a different 12 associated person. And what happened, I think, was ‘
13 here in terms of describing liability that is 13 that they went ghead and did the "or” but did the :
14 attributable to individuals under specific 14 “are® too, and didn't leave the "is” in. That sounds 2
15 circumstances. 15 altle bit like Dr. Suess, but I think that's
16 MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin. 16 that's the issue here,
17 MR. CARTIN: Thank you, Mr. Chair, and ¥ Is that the way I read it now is a
18 I'd--justto follow up onthat. J —Tiend 1o 18 business entity, agen! or high managerial agent are
19 agree with — with Mr. Hobbs about — with regard to |19 guilty of an offense if -~ and -- and assurmning for A
20 the fact that this appears to be a statute that sefs 20  the sake of discussion that the "are” should be an 4
21 forth an offense and a penalty. But I just —1just 21 "is." When you get fo A, the conduct constituting :
22 want to make sure that T understand. And I would 27  the offense consists of an omission to discharge a :
23 say - this is probably an editorial comment — as 23 specific duty of affirmative perfonmance imposed on
24  the statute is currently written probably isn't a5 24 the business eniity by law.
25 artful as it could bf:.w2 25 I its entity, agent or high manager ~ or
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1. high managerial agent -- does this impose 1 don't know, maybe you're right, that that's not :
2 Tiability - and this may get to Mr. Domenico --come | 2 really our problem, but. . .
3 back to Mr. Domenico's line of quesiioning, I'm 3 MR. GRUESKIN: Well, and - and the
4 ot --and ifit does | apologize -- but - but 4  question seems to me is whether or not your current
% assuming its entity, agent or high managerial agent S language in describing that is accurate,
& is,if thie conduct constiteting the offense consists 6 MR. DOMENICO: Right.
7 ofanadmission to discharge a specific duty of 7 MR. GRUESKIN: And right now your current
8 affirmative performance imposing (inavdible) by the & lanpuage says extending criminal liability tea
9 law. 9 business entitys, directors, officers and employees,  §
19 Is the business entity the agent and the 10 and then this clause ebout agents. If the business i
11 high managerial agent all puilty of the offense? 11 fails to perform duties that are required by law or
12 Becaitse theré's no conforming Janguage to LA or 1B, |12  if management engages in blah, blah, blab. Your
13 for example, and I think we went over thislast time, | 13 title reflects your reading of the measure.
14 tosayin YA, for example, imposed on the business 14 MR, DOMENICO: Yeah., Imean,Ithink
15 entity, agent or high managerial agent. And somy 15 agree with that. I think I agree that that's not
16 questionis: Ifthere’s 2 violation of 1A, who is 16 really our problem. I'm not sure § agree that the
17 puilty? 17 title is as clear as it could be. But 1 just wanted
ig MR. GRUESKIN: The way the measure reads, | 18 to make sure. Becanse 1 was struggling with rying,
19  the individuals who are covered under the statute and | 19 o figure out whe's guilty. And it seemns to me that
20 the business entity are potentially guilty. 20 under the statute itself, it's everybody. And now
21 Obviousty, T can't tell you based upon the facts that 2t maybe it would be interpreted in a way to alleviate
72 are unknown to me whether or not ail would be guilty. [ 22 the sort of absurd situation where youw'd have every
23 Ttmightbe one; it might be two; it might be three. 23 employee guilty of a orime. I'mean, I would hope so,
24 1t depends upon — 24 but. .,
25 MR. DOMENICO: But what would limit that? | 25 MR, GRUESKIN: And there's nothing in
Page 35 Pape 37
1 I'mean, the only defense I see — | mean, the way 1 here, as you point out, that reads out due process
2 it's written is that they're ali guilty if the 2 fom the Colorado Constitution.
3 bhusiness-- I mean, and that means every employee. 3 MR. DOMENICO: Sure.
4 And there's no limit on them knowing.any of this. 4 MR. GRUESKIN: So, I mean, the —the -
5 They'e all guilty if the entity engaged in this — 5 would a -- would a campaign be run Lhat sugpesis t
6 and their only affirrnative defense 2s it's written is 6 certain things? Sure. Is this the only draft of the
7 that they reported it to the Attorney General. 7 oeasure that you're going fo see this cycle? T don't
g I mean, are you relying on some kind of % kmow. Butmy guess is that for purposes of today,
9 due process exception that would — that would be 9  the issue is-whether or not if -- if whether this is
10 read into this that would limit it to actual 10 aproposal you can -- you can subsequently get your
11 individuals who had some responsibility for it, 11 arms around in terms of embracing, whether or not the
12 ‘because there's not in the plain language of it. 12 title is accwrate. And then the proponenis are going
13 MR. GRUESKIN: Well, the piain language is | 13 to figure out which measure of theirs to circulate. :
14 what the plain language is. I mean, frankly, you 14 And frankly, they -- let me -- let me take
15 know, I mean I don't know that this goes Yo single 15 onestep forward. One of the real criticisms in the :
16 subject as much as il goes to kind of the merits of 16 initiative process is that theres no give and take
¥7  the measure -- 17 and therefore things get floated Lo voters that are
18 MR. DOMENICO: Right. Yeah. And1--1 18 truly problematic.
19 appreciate that, and 1 just want to make sure we 19 My view is that, notwithstanding roaybe the
20 understand what's going on. But that is -- that is 20  legislative staff didn't quite get il right in terms
21 the way [ read it that - that the statute itself 21  of their comments, that’s one opportunity for that
22 wouldn't contain any kind of 2 knowledge requirement § 22 review. The first hearing biefore this board s a 3
73 or a responsibility vequirement on the part of en 23 second opportunity for that review., Thoughtful 3
24  agent, so the plain language would include every 24  comments made by kmowledgeable counsel are ancther ‘
25 employee is guilty of 2. crime under this. And, 1 25 cpportunity for that review, a rehearing is a fourth :
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o 1 opportunity, Thisis productive exercise. And so, 1 You kniow, when we were here previcusly, Mr. Grueskin
2 youknow, I-- I just want you to know that T 2 explained this as what this statute deals with is :
3 appreciate the -- the give and take. And, you know, 3 cither the passive act of lmewing but not doing
4 T'mserious when I tell yoq, this may not be the only 4 anything about it, or in the shternative, not
5 version of this measure that you'll see. 5 performing the duties required by law. Thisisan
6 MR. DOMENICO: Aliright. CanIjustask: | 6 expansion hearing; it's not just about enforcement of
7 Couid you just explain a little bit more how yousee | 7 other criminal acts. Thank you. ;
8 thisasinteracting with 18-1-607. 8 MR. DOMENICG: Thave one more question é
S MR. GRUESKIN: Sure. 18-1-607 provides 9 that I think maybe is more for Mr. Grueskin, but you ;
10 that the affirmative crirminal acts of a coyporation 10 might be able to answer it while you're up there.
Il areatiributable to certain of its key actors. What 11 And that is: Is there any similar civil right of
12 it doesnot say is that the failure to aci is 12 action under 507 or the - the affirmative, the --
13 atiribuiable to certain of its key actors. This 13 the imposition of this affinmative crime for
14 measure is intended to fill in that gap so that there 14 affirmativeacts? Isthere a similar civil Hability
15 is liability for commission and omission on the part | 15 section in that, or is that unique to this new
16 of both the entity and its key aciors. 16 measuge? Like in 607, do you know?
17 MR. HOBBS: Any other questions for 17 ME. FRIEDNASH: Not that ¥m aware of.
18 Mr, Greeskin? Thank you. Mr. Friednash, any final | 18 Il defer to Mark, but not that I'm aware of.
19 comments? 19 MR, GRUESKIN: No. There — [ mean, to
20 MR, FRIEDNASH: Just real brief — 20 the best of my recollection, Section 607 is, 1 think,
21 MR. HOBBS: Okay. 21 ope or two Jines ~
22 MR. FRIEDNASH: -1 promise. I wouild 22 MR DOMENICO: Straight criminal. ;
23 tell-you that whether the general assembly passes 23 MR, GRUESKIN: .-based on.— :
24 something or not, and whether that consbifutes single | 24 MR. DOMENICO: Yeah, that's my :

25 subjectis noreal standard for a tifle board dealing | 25 recoliection too. Okay.

° Page 39 Page 41

1  with initiative process, I can think of many things 1 MR. HOBBS: I'don't have anyone else
2 that have passed while serving the legistature that 2 coming up to testify, so I willtum to board
3 probably didn't fall within the scope of the single 3 discussion. Amy discussions by the board? :
4 suhiect. 4 MR, DOMENICO: ¥ guess I start. :
5 Having said that, enforcerment is not just 5 1--thisisa,]think a closer case than the last
& what (his is about. This is about it creates new 6 one, but I'm still where I was previously in thinking
7 substantive crimes. And clearly this is en offense ?  that this is two subjects. T think the cases that1
8 anda penalty. The word offense starts in Subsection | 8 looked at that sort of were relevant are the waters
9 1, They're guilty of an offense if' it then defines % cases, the Number 17 from last -- last year about the
10 the type of offenses they are dealing with here. And [ 10 environmental conservation as well as the public 1
11 i is something that whether DAs or the Attorney 11 trust doctrine and the Number 55.
12 General's office prosecutes cases, persons will be 12 All of those it's quite clear to me could \
13 filing cases based on this. People will read this 13 be grouped under something you would call a single |f
14  and believe they have a private right of action based | 14 subject. But yet, the court held all of them to :
15 on rhis type of conduct. And I think that is 15 violate the single-subject requirement and — and the
16 something that we will see. 16 wayl — the only way I can try to make sense of
17 And ¥ fhink it is confusing, and 17 these, and I'm not sure I've ever succeeded is, that
18  uitimately, you know, there are hidden purposes here, { 18  if you have to raise the level of generalily of what
19 and, you know, it is -~ there are a lot of provisions 19 you call the subject so high that it's pretey far
20 ‘here that are cotted up in the folds of a complex 20 yemoved from the actual action that's going on in the
21 initiative. It's easy to say that this is just a 21 measure in order to bring everything under it, which
22 business Hability, but it's confusing, it's 22  isto say I picture kind of a pyramid and the subject
23  misleading, and it bard to read. 23 is way up high and the — the two things — they're
24 And the voters are going to be surprised 24  really here two things that trouble me. And they
25

by the manner in which it is ultimately intgretcd. 25 seem, while they're related ole A
11 (Pages 38 to 41)
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1 subject, theyre sort of surprising and I think not } under that single subject is so unrefated 10 cach

2 really connected to each otherin any soit of 2 other that | don't think we've — we can really

3 necessary way, and that is the -- the extension as 3 accuratefy capture it in the title, which suggeststo

4 Mr. Grueskin said the basic point here is extending | 4 methat it's not e single subject.

5 Hability to individuals for omissions of their 5 MR. BOBRS: Mr. Cartin. Okay. Well, F1i

6 corporation. That seems to me to be one subject. 6 poahead and start. ! guess [ doseeila little

7 And then the — the imposition, though, of 7 differently than Mr, Domenico, I think. Tmean, f'm

8 these new civil penalties, both on the business apd 8 sort of wondering if Mr. Cartin is going to say

9 onthe individuals, is, 1 think, sort of confusing. 9 something that twrns me arcund. But basicaily 1
10 The fact that there's a separate statute that already | 190 think I don’t — I don't sec this as a single-subject
11 imposes some ctirpinal Habilify on individuals adds | 11 violation. And —and I agree that it's — that it's
12 to what I think is kind of confusion here that -~ 12 sometimes hard to, when we fook at cases hike public
13 that 1 would think that the clearer wayto do —~1 13 rights and water, 1 know it's sometimes hard to —

14 mean, the way that would be less surprising, less of | 14 like Number 55 — 1 know it's samctimes hard to
15 arisk of kind of log rolling, of hiding this 15 figure out what the rules of the game are.
16 expansion of civil liability behind the sort of -- 16 But I -- I think this is a fairly narrow
17 the basic -- what | se¢ as the basic purpose, which | 17 subject, and not an -- not an excessively broad
18 is to extend liability for omissions to individuals, 18 subject. [ think it does have to do with -- with
19  corporate or business entity ornissions to individuals | 19 liability from business misconduct, which I think
20 would be to either do it -~ do the extension of 20 is— is a fairly well-confined subject. There's
21 liability for individuals in 807, which already deals | 21 more than one thing golng on in the measwre to
22 with that subject — and then separately in -- in -- 22 advance the purposes of the measure, 1 think, and ag
23 or I'm sorry, Lkeep saying 807 — 607, and this is 23 Mr. Domenico — and Mr. Domenico notes what they are.
24 606. And then if you wasnt to expand the types of 24 But it seems to me that they are all
25  remedies that are available or the types of 25 related to business liability for misconduct and --
Page 43 Papge 45 {

1 enforcement to include civil penalties, you could do i and extending kability to individuals seems to

2 that in --here in 606. 2 promote that purpose that the proponents have a5 —

3 The trying to do the two of them together 3 aswell as providing a — award — award of civil

4 as opposed lo some of the legislation that 4 penaitiesas well. Solsee them as pretty tightly

5 Mr. Grueskin reférenced where you create anew crime | 5 connected to the purpose and -- and within a fairly

6 and you say, well, the way we're going to enforce 6 mnarow subject, ] think. So I just-- ] justsee it

7 this is, you know, going to include bath civil and 7 alittle differently, ! think.

8 criminal penalties. I think there's samething very g MR. HOBBS: Any comments, Mr. Cartin?

% different about this where basically you're saying, 9 MR. CARTIN: 1--1dor't have much to add :
10 well, we've already got these crimes and we're 10  to your comments, Mr, Chairman. 1-- i, too, based ;
11 extending liability for them to individuals, and 11 onthe text in the measure, if there are — il there f‘
12 we're also creating a new -~ 8 new form of 12 are two purposes here, if there is more than one y
13 enforcement. 13 purpose, they're certainly refated in my mind. And {
14 Fer some reason to me, I find that much 14  the fact that you have an extension of criminal ;
15 more of a surprise and unrelated to the basic point 15 liability to a business's agents coupled with a civil 1
16  of who should be liable of how they should be liable. 16 right of action agaiast the entity or its agents
17 Apnd maybe I'm wrong about that. I--Fwould alse 17 arising out of that crimninal activify, 10 me that
18 point out -- we're probably not supposed to say i 18 just isn't - to me those are interrelated purposes.

19 out toud -- but 1 think it's pretty clear that the 19  That doesn't rise to the level of, as the court has
20 single-subject requirement is applied more 20 said, gronping distinct purposes where the connection
21 stringently to initiatives than it is to everyday 21 s too broad and too general to make them part of the
72  legislation, whether that's'wise or not. 22 same subject.
23 1 think roy reading.of this, especially the 23 Om in 55 where the court said the
24 waier cases, 17 and 535, suggests that while these are 24  complexity and ominous provisions are hidden from the
25 related to a single subject, the — what they _g:o 25 voler. Tome you don't have that here. There's --
12 {Pages 42 to 45)
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I there's no surprise in my mind, and Fm reluctant to 1 don't think, though, that they've analogous 1n saying
2 even goto the - the swprise analysis. But I 2 Xis now a cime znd we're going to enforce this
3 again, | would just say that to me it seems as though 3 erime through both civil and eriminal penalties is
4 it's a fairly narrow title and ~- or subject, and 4 different to me than saying this thing that's 2
5 that there is a single subject. 5 crime, we're now holding responsible for it a whole
6 And I think that when you do have 6 new class of people, and in addition both for those
7 decisions like - I think My. Domenico’s pomnt is 7 new people and for the entity that previcusly was
8 well taken. But when you — when you have 8 responsible for il we're creating & new type of
9 articulations of the single-subject requirement 9 liability, to me is very different than saying we're
10  and — und locking in where the court says in one 10  creating a new type of wrongful conduct and here's
11 paragraph that they're not going to lock at the — 11 how we're going to enforce it.
12 theeffect or the intent of the measure or construe 12 And it's — I agree that these are — can
13 the legal effects, and then - thea go straight to we 13  be related to a single subject. I find, frankly,
14 must examine sufficiently an inibative's central 14 liability for crimmnal conduct of busmesses, though,
15 theme as to express or determine whether it contains 15 is very broad, contrary to Mr. Hobbs' staternent.
16 incongruous for hidden purpose or bundles, 16 This doesn't define any of that conduct; you have to
17 incongruous measures under a broad theme. Thatmakes | 17 ook elsewhere forit. And so, I mean, the
18 it tough on the titte board. 18 combination of adding a new type of liabiity to an
19 And so what 1 -- what I come back to,1 19 exisling crime as well as adding a new class of
20 puess, is 14106.5, and -- and to ~- to Mr. Domenico’s 20 people who are subject to prosecution and to the new
21 comment about being more of a stringent view of the 21 type of liability is where I have the trouble and
22 single subiect on initiatives than is before the 22 where 1 see a distinction that's very different from
23 peneral assembly on bills. T'm -- that may be -- 23 the cases we weye talking about, whether ornot
24  that may be one take on it. But Tm -~ I'm reluctant 24 they're Initiatives or legiskation.
25 1o go there, and I just kind come back to kind of 25 MR. HOBBS: Thank you. T guess Il go
' Page 47 Page 49 |
1 keepmy eye on'the ball nnder 14106-3, Subsection 3, | 1 ahead and move that -- that the board deny the motion [
2 where it says, "It is for the intent of the general 2 for rehearing, i
3 assemblythat is getting tithes pursuant to Section 3 MR. CARTIN: Seccond.
4 F515 of Article 5." The initiative tile setting 4 MR. HOBBS: Any further discussion? If
5 review board creating Section 14106 should apply 5 not, all that's in favor say aye.
6 judicial decisions constrained (inaudible} of the 6 MR, CARTIN: Aye,
7 constitution single-subject requirement for bills and 7 MR. HOBBS: Aye. All those opposed say
8 should follow the same rules ermployed by the general | 8 no.
$ assembly in considering titles for bills. 9 MR. DOMENICO: No.
10 Anid T think that Mr. Grueskin’s pointing 10 MR. HOBBS: That motion caries two to
11 out a couple of statutes that have done where youve [ 11 one. And that completes action on Number 57. The F
12 had a civil and criminal component in both providea | 12 timeis 12:07 pom. Let's go on to the next agenda
13 strong basts for the — for a conclusion that this 13 item, 2067-2008, Number 62, cause for enployee --
14 has a single subject. And I'm ~ F'm still kind of 14 MR. GRUESKIN: Mr. Chairman, conld I
15 following that as part of my rule, sic. 1--towme 15 just-- before you ghead here --
16 inmy mind, there's a single subject here if there's 16 MR. HOBBS: Mr. Grueskin, yes, sir.
17 abill, and so I'm going to po ahead and extend that 17 MR. GRUESKIN: Did your ruling - just so
18 toamifitiatve. 18 Tunderstand, did your ruling cover the various
19 MR. DOMENICC: Just to respond real 19 points, the allegations made about the inherent lack
20 quickly on that Tast point. I mean, my -- my point 20 of clasity? Did - did you interpret those to be —
21  about the case as cited by Mr. Grueskin 21 and Pmnot sure, because 1 wasa't -- wasn sure,
22 is -- the more importartt point to me is riot having 22 about whether those were challenges to the
23 really looked at all of thern, the way they were 23 jurisdiction of the board or whether those were
24 characterized and my understanding of themis that] |24 challenges to the fitle yonr set, as was the case for :
25 wouldn't necessarily disagree that -- with those, 1 25 the specific allegetion on, you know, who is an agent ;
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1 and whether or not the single-subject reference is 1 inthe fitle fiself, but there are nonbusiness or g
2 correct. Soljust want to make sure that the nuling 2 nonperformance reasens that constitute the :
3 is clear on the record. - 3 termination of just canse. They can be a reduction :
4 MR, HOBBS: Thank you. AndI—ajthcugh | 4 in force by a business; if less than 10 percent would
5 Tdidn't speak tothat, it was -+ it was my intention 5 not copstinxe just cause. So it goes beyond the
6 to also support what the board had gone before with 6 traditionat concept of just cause. But I think in
7 respectto the titles and so forth, including the 7 doing so, that will be confusing for voters to
8 questions about whether the changes were inresponse | & understand,
% to comments from legislative staff and so forth, Is % The -- it creates a ~-and — and here's
10 that - I don't know whether the other board members | 10 where 1 think it really goes beyond into anether
31 want toweigh in on that. 1P subject, and really an incongruous subject in that.
12 MR, DOMENICO: I mean, I just say1 12 This isn't just about creating a new standard for the
13 think the title is - is confusing and misleading in 13 termination of employees or suspension of employees,
14  some ways mostly, but it’s related 1o the fact that 1 14 which is largely hidden, but we are actualiy
15 think the measure itself contains more than one 15 replacing the cwvent one. But it also creates this
16 subject, s0. .. 16 new remedy. And the new remedy is for a sole remedy
17 MR, HOBBS: Thank you. So, again, 17 for dispute resolution, which is called mediation,
18 let's —we'll close discussion then on Number 57 and [ 18 but it's a final, binding decision. I¢snota :
19 poonto Number 62. And in the interest of time, 19 nonbinding rediation that we're all familiar with, :
20 weTe actually poing to have to move & little faster 20  which would be arbitration. 3
21 onthis one. SoI think we have to be — by about 23 And, again, this is placed in the i
22 12:45, ¥d like to be finished. 22 constitution. It's not something the legistatore is
23 Again, we have a motion for rehearing wath 23 poing to be able to tinker, except to the level
24. a fine bricf from -- M. Friednash, would you liketo |24 which they can facilitate the implementation. But
25 highlight some of your points? 25 this is going to be placed in the constitution, and
Page 51 Page 53 ¢
1 MR. FRIEDNASH: Sure. Letmemakethis | 1 the sole remedy is for someone fo file & complaint
2 quick as well. 1 appreciate your time constraints. 2 within 30 days and to have a hearing in 120 days.
3 Thisis a complex initiative with a very broad theme | 3 That's not in the bill of title, those two pieces.
4 that contains a lot of hidden purposes and bundles 4  This is complaint procedure.
5 incongment measures under that very broad theme. | 5 That #t's a final decision is not clear,
6 The— let me justkind of highlight what ismissing | & Noris it clear, a hidden purpose, that this now goes
7 andwhat this does. 7 along end eliminates one's right to the court system,
8 The intent and purposes of this is o § And they agree to disagree on it, but that's my
9 chiminate at-will employment doctrine v Colorade. | 9  interpretation of this. And if 'mwrong, then it's
10 Thatis nowhere contained in the measuore itselfor | 10 just confusing and migleading to voters, but I think
11 thetext, Iteliminates the parties' right to enter 11 voters will be surprised thet this is the effect of :
12 into employment contracts and collective bargaining | 12 this proceeding. ’
13 agreements. It's a hidden purpose. Thatisoneof |13 There is no -- untike the arbitration act, *‘
14  the things this does. 1t's not addressed in the text 14 which lays out in a number of different statutes the i
[53  or the fitle. 15 method of which you can appeal to district court, and r
13 1t replaces that traditional empleyment 16  the basis in which you can appeal, there’s no such !
17 relationship with a new just-cause standard that 17 reference here whatsoever, instead 1t just says that ;
18 govemns all employment relationships in Colorado, | 18  this is a final decision. Tt eliminates access to H
19 public.and private. 1 believe the voters are going 19 court, due process, and personal system rights that
20 to surprised to understand that, apain, this 20 are available to state employees.
21 eliminates at-will employment. That, two, it creates § 21 Again, voters are going to be surprised to i
22 ajust-cause standard to the extent where there is 22 leamn that if you're a state employee, that there's i
23 one, 23 this new mechanism that has been created here. Itis
24 Axnd that the just-cause standard 24 a separate and distinct pwpose in subpart and in
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1 this inikiative creates. 1 in which they do it, is going to be at issue. And it
2 It creates new remedies that azen’t 2 15, at minimum, confusing and misleading. But'in-my
3 provided by law. Oneis the attorneys' fees 3 view it goes a step further, because that's-actually
4 provisien. There is an attomeys' fees provision 4 what this does. The use of the phrase "mediation,”
5 under 2 wage claim act by way of exainple only, but 5 and fnality are really misleading terms.in this
6 not with respect to traditional employment, 6 document and things that I think are going to be very
7 relationships or contract relationships, unless it is 7 confusing to the voter.
8 apart of the contract itself. But this allows a new 8 And then, finally, let me just touch on,
9 remedy, which is attomeys' fees, and anolther new 9 again, a sirnilar problem that oceurs here that
10 remedy, which is reinstatement, There's no remedy 10 gccurred in the jast measure, which s the amended
11 right now in Colorado law that provides for 11 title end text wasn't exactly -- well, first of all,
12 reinstaterient, except in Title 7 context. 12  the amended title was submitted here. The text
i3 So ultimately what this does is it joins 13 itself added two new definitions to just cause,
14 mmltiple subjects and it poses a danger of unfair 14 which, again, it's my understanding that those two
15 surprise and fraud occasioned by the inadvertent 15 issues, which were the filing of bankruptcy by a
16 passage of a surreptiticus provision coiled up in the 16 business and the simultanecus discharge of 10 percent %
17 fields of a complex initiative. This is from the 17 or more employer - employer's workforce in Colorado
18 decision last year in Initiative 17. 18 were provisions that weren't contemplated by
19 And as Mr. Certin recently pointed out, 19 legistative counsel and legal services. So, as
20 what's difficult is there's clear language that says 20 promised, I made by remarks brief and will take arty
21 in that deciston you have examine sufficientlyinthe |21  questions.
22 initiative of central theme to determine whether it 22 MR, HOBBS: Thank you. Any questions?
23 contains hidden purposes under a bread theme. This | 23 MR. CARTIN: No.
24 clearly contains hidden purposes under & very broad | 24 MR HOBBS: Thank you very much.
25 theme of just cause for termination and suspension of | 25 MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you.
Page 55 Page 57 &
t  employees. 1 MR. HOBBS: Mr. Greusldn. 3
2 ¥ think it is similar to in re: proposed 2 MR. GREUSKIN; Let's see who can be :
3 iniliative 1997 through 1998, Number 63, where the 3 briefer. Most of the concemns raised are shout what
4 court held that the fitle board failed by fixing the 4 voters might or might not understand as to the
5 title in summary of initiative until judicial 5 potential effects. First of all, all of that is
6 qualifications because it contained provisions 6 conjecture. Secondly, the court has never said that
7 proposing to change the manmner, the selection, powers | 7  the effects of the measure have to be stated-in the :
§ and procedures of an independent constitutional body 8 title. And, thirdly, that's the purpose of a H
9 which were unrelated to judicial qualifications. The 9 campaign. 1mean, that's why campaign professionals i
10 theme was the judicial branch, but could not be 10 use the maxim for voters, "if you don't know, vote :
11  considered to be 4 single subject. 11 no." AndI'msure that there wall be an active 3
12 It's easy to say we have this single 12 campzign on this, But the question is whether ar not ;
13 subject and everything fits within the scope of it. 13 thisis a single subject. i
14 But the problem here is that, one; it doesn't, and, 14 1 think that our position was stated at i
15 two, volers are going to really be surprised of alt 15 initial hearing. I'mnot poing to go through it 4
16 of the direct implications of what this initiative 16 again. Bottom line, you've got concerns about 1
17 does. It conflicts with the constitution. Granted, 17 potential effects rather than actual, distinet 5
18 yesh, you don't bave to go to the merits right now. 18 purpases that have no reasonable connection with one &
i9 But as we've learned from Amsendment 41, 19 znother. And that alone is not a basis for this
20 you kmow, it takes years, potentizHy, to unravel 20 board not to set a title,
21 some of the mysteries of initiatives, especially when 21 In additicn, s to the civil service
22 they pet placed in the Colorado Constitution. It may 22 systermn.and the like, the court traditionally reads
23 take years to unravel this. 23  these provisions consisting with existing taw, and [
24 And how a court interprets conflicling 24 think they do that here. The question was also
25 constitutional amendments or prgisians in the mamner {25 taised as to -- in terrns of jurisdictional concems,
15 (Pages 54 to 57)
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1 whether or not the additional conditions of just 1 al disputes about employment essentially out of the  [;
2 cause were bver considercd by the legislative counsel | 2 court system, would seem to me to be a pretty big :
3 and legal services. 3 change that was kind of hidden.
4 With your perrndssion, Mr. Chairman, I'd 4 And so as Iong as I'm assured that that's 3
5 tike to give you the eview and comment meme. 5 not the intent and -- and you won't be coming into {
6 MR. HOBBS: Thank you. 6 the Supreme Court urging them to say that nobody can
7 MR. GRUESKIN: I'd ask you o take d look 7 challenge the decision of one of these mediators,
8 at Page 5, Question Nugaber 5, that which pointsthe | 8  then I think I'm okay.
9 siaff specifically raised whether or not the 9 MR, GRUHSKIN: Mr. Domenico, as1 - as I
10 proponents were inferding to require that just cause | 10 stated two weels ago, this doesn't create en
11 be applied even when there was, quote, a ack of work | 11 exccption to the right of judicial review. Allthis
12 oreven bankmuptey of the emrployer. Is this the 12 does is set an expedited time frame for an initjal
13 proponent's infent? i3  informal process between an employer and employee.
14 The proponents took heed of that question 14 And, frankly, as a finality, it is clear that itis
15 and added those two conditions. Obviousty, they 15 a--a final docision as to the process under-this
16 added some specificity so that it wasn't simply that 16 subsection.
17 vague languape, and therefore we think the issue was 17 MR. DOMENICO: Okay. That's what I had
18 adequately addressed befow. 1 think all of the other | 18 hoped you'd say.
19 issues were addressed two weeks ago, and so I'mnot | 19 MR. HOBBS: Mr. Cartin.
20 going toTepeat our responses unless you just want me | 20 MR. CARTIN: Mr. Grueskin, assuming --
21 fo. 21 assuming for the — the sake of this question that
22 MR. HORBS: One —cne questionis: Would {22 Pm about to ask you and for discussion that
23 it be a fair statement that the purpose of the 23 Mr. Friednash's allegations — that the true purpose
24 initiative is to climinate the st-will employrent 24 is -~ well, assuming for the sake of the discnssion
25 doctrine in Colorado? 25 that the effect of the measure is to create a
Page 59 Page 61
1 MR. GRUESKIN: Well, I thinkthat you've | 1 just-cause standard for employee discharge or ;
2 got it more secorately done in terms of your 2 suspension and to supersede or repeal at-will B
3 single-subject statement, which tatks abow and 3 employment in Colorado and that — and the effect is
4  doesn' say establish, but it's an esteblishment of a 4 that it supersedes an (inaudible} of appeals in the
5 just-cause standard for actions, Obviously, that 5 state's civil service system as well as impacting any
6 standsin -- in dislinction to the at-will stalus or 6 local governmentsl civil service system that may be
7 standard thatis currenily used, 7 inplace. :
8 ‘MR. HOBBS: Okay. g Assuntng that that's the effect — for the i
9 MR. GRUESKIN: But it isn't sinmply 9 sake of discussion, that those are the effects of the £
10 eliminating at-will, because that would leave a void. | 10 measure, and you don't have 1o agree or disagree that i
1 MR. HOBBS: Okay. Thank you. 11 those are -- like you say, they may be conjecture,
i2 MR. DOMENICO: I've got one quick thing. | 12 but for the sake of discussion, let's say that is the
13 The one thing that concerns me is this, is the 13 effect. Why shouldn't — why under the - the :
14 mediztion. And I think we talked about tast ime I |14 relevant cases shouldn't separate measures be :
5  think you sort of reassured me thal just becanse its | 15 presented to the voters for each of those fhree for
16  a final, doesn't mean there's no recourse to'the 16 just cause, for the impact on the civil service state
17 courts after that. And it that's true, T think 17 and local and for — k
18 T'd~ Pd-- I'mwilling to go along. 18 MR. GRUESKIN: The at-will?
19 1 think I'may - it — it would trouble me 19 MR, CARTIN: -'the at-will?
20 if -- especially since 1 think M. Friednash is 20 MR. GRUESKIN: Allright. 11 - :
21 right, that this is reafly arbitration that's called 21 MR. CARTIN: Why shouldn't those be
22 mediation. That by itself is probably not enough for 22  treated as separate subjects? .
23 me to findthe measure misleading, but if it were 23 MR. GRUESKIN: First of all, you know,
24 combined with the idea that in addition to - the — the underlying basis of my answer is that |
0 25 cIish j ime, you're also talkin =~ _ ;
16 {Pages 58 to0 61}
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H ‘MR, CARTIN: All right. 1 oneism't.
2 MR. GRUESKIN: — ckay? 2 MR. HOBBS: Thank you,
3 MR CARTIN: Ckay. 3 MR. GRUESKIN: Sure. :
4 MR. GRUESKIN: The -- the puiported 4 MR. HOBBS: Thanks. Mr. Fiiednash, any
5 effects. It seems to me that the at-will and 5 final remarks?
6 just<uause effects, if you will, or provisions go 6 MR FRIEDNASH: Yeah, please. Thank you.
7 hand in hand. 1 mean, you couldn't have at-will and 7 And just for the record, I'd indicate that I think
8 just cause. Ithink that that's clear. If you - if 8 both tirnes I have spoken less than Mr, Grueskin, and
9 you were making 2 blanket rule, you couldn't have 9 @will try to again.
10 both of those. So necessarily one is part-of the 10 Let me start here, Clearly the intent of
11 other subject. }don't—1I just havea very, very 11 this, among other things, but the primary intent is
12 difficult time thinking that the proponents would be 12 to eliminate at-will employment, and Mr. Grueskin
13 required to have one initiative that terminates the 13  acknowledged that specifically to this board when we
14 ab-will process and a second initiative that I4  were here last week,
15  establishes just cause. Because if the first 15 The -- it doesn't say it eliminates
16 initiative would pass and the second wouidn't, what's 16  at-will employment, but that's the effect of it. It
17 the standard in Colorado? Se that one 1 don't think 17  does eliminate at-will employment. It doesn't have
18 really concesns me. I8 to say something to actually have cenain effects.
19 The civil service issues, it seems to me 19 And l weould point out that, yeah, there are other
20 that, you know, if what you're Irying to do is create 20 measures that I think you vall see. And one of those
2} acommon platform from which all employees may ~ you | 21 other measures tries to clean up some of these
22  know, under which they work and — and -- and — so 22 ambignities. And -- and one of them i5 that
23 that they have commion conditions and -- and potential 23 clarifies the right to appeal. It discusses the
24 circumstances of termination or suspension, then yon 24 fact, kind of talks about mediation and - ang
25  wouldn't need to have a separate measure &3 to either 25 discusses the fact that there are these certain
Pape 63 Page 65 [
1 state employees or Tocal employees. 1 appellate rights.
2 If that - if that level of expansiveness 2 Tt goes through a number of other
3 is what proponents desire, then it seems to me you 3 different pieces that are problematic under this,
4 ¢am do that, Now, 1.don't think, as T said last 4 and - and those are other initiatives that will go
5 time,’that that's what this does, ButTdon't sce 5 through this process. And italso exempls out state
€ any - anything i the case law that says that you 6 employees and local povernmental employees,
7 have to fréat sirmlarly sifuaied individuals under 7 Recognizing that, again, that is the specific
2 separzie ballot measures. And that's basjcally what | 8 implication. It doesn't have to say something to
9 you're saying. I you perform a governmental 9  havethat effect. And that's the point of hidden
10 fiinction, you are inherently different. 10 purposes and hidden effects. You can'tjusttuma
1 Hyou're a — if you're a nurse working 11 blind eye and — andnot understand that these are
12 in a public hospital, you are inherently different 12 the things that happen as a result of this language.
13 and therefore subject to different employment 13 It doesn't have to say it in here to have that 1
14  standards than a nurse working in a private hospital. | 14 impact, but that's what 11 does. o
15 P'mnot saying that that makes good policy. All¥m |15 The reality is this does, in fact, create
16 saying is that there's no reason why that ean't be 16 certain obstacles tothe cowrt system. Youcan'tgo  §
17 part of the same measure. 17 in and argue a separate case in the court system :
18 AndTN —and Pl add justina 18 because the first thing that either the employer or ;
19  15-second bivrb that as ] said in -- a5 to Number 37. | 19 employee is going to do, the prevailing party, is
20 This process is helpful in terms of fleshing out some | 20 they're going to chatlenge that on issue prechusion
21 of these issues. And [ would doubt that thisisthe |21  or claim preclusion and they're going to win, because
22 last measure that you see that deals with this 22  you've already had your day in court. And your day
23 subject so that there is a greater clarity on issues 23 in court is this, quote, unguote, mediation process.
24 like that one. But the fact that those other 24 So that is what this will do. That is the effect. :
25 measures mié'nt be out there doesn't mean that this {25 _ All of these thm%s that [ believe it i
17 {Pages 62 1o 65)
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I' misleads voters and I —rather than just-articulate, 1 the other things thet are identified in the motion *
2 theyre on Page 7 of the motion, and they go into, 2 forrehearing are not really separate subjects, but
3 yon'know, great detdil about the different things 3 effeets of the measure, which the Supreme Court has,
4 that I think it fails fo express and - and do. But 4 Tihink, given us some goidance as to believe that
5 this clearly eliminates the civil service system. 5 there - those are net necessarily separate subjects; 3
6 Isjustihe effect ofit. That's what this does. 6 5o that's kind of my point of view at this point. H
7 The civil service system gives you the opportimity 1o | 7 Any other discussion? ]
8  po from administrative law judge end appeal that 8 MR. DOMENICO: 1 agree with your g
9 decision to the personmel board and take that to the 9 conclusion, but I — I — there are two parts of this ;
10 cowt systermn, This doesn't exempt that out: It 10  that would rouble me, and I'm -- ceitainly sounds 3
11 should have, but it doesn't, So what does that mean? | 11 like there's something that may be a better option
12 N means that's the effect. You do{ have to liave 12  out thers in the fiture, but the arguments really to
13 this litigated to understand that's what this does. 13 me gomore to the merits than to the sinple-subject
14  These aren't just hypotheticals; they are the 14  issue. Imnean, if this redlly did change the entire 3
15 implicit realities of it. 15 civil service system, I would have trouble with it, :
16 There's no process in here that gives you 16 although I prebably would agree with Mr. Grueskin
17 the ability to challenge that mediation decision. 17 that you could do that in a measure, but T would
18 Bul you know what, in the new measure that youmay | 18 'be — I 'would think that might be -- this measure
19 see down the road that's been filed, it does specify 19 doesn't do it clearly enough. T would think that
20  an appeliate process; clearly specifies the time 20 “wouid be a hidden tropact that would really trouble
21 period, the fact that you geto.go into the court of 21 me, and I would thank that would be kind of a
22 appeals and lays that out. Why? Becanse thisisa 22  sumeptitious thing.
23 constituhional amendment that doesn't clanfy it 23 And so the way I interpret it is more
24 And you know what, legislature doesn't et to fix 24 consistent with Mr. Grueskdn that — in order partly,
25 this, butyou can by granting the motion; for 25  at least, to avoid that very problem a court is
Page 67 Page 69
| rehearing and allewing the proponents of thistoget | 1 unlikely to ry to apply this to the civil service
2 thisTight. 2 section would instead read the two provisions of the |2
3 MR. HOBBS: Thank you. Il tum to board 3 constitution so they aren't read Lo conflict with ]
4 discussion. Any discussion by the board? 4 each other and apply this only to those parts -- ‘
5 1 think T} start in this case. 11 5 those.employers to which the civil service amendment £
6 dosee this as a single subject. 1 think it's about & doesn't apply. g
7 just cause, requiring just-cavse in all employment. 7 Similarly if this, as I said, really did
8 And although it may be - I don’t kmow - I suggested | 8 remove these cases completely from the court system,
9 {o Mr. Grueskin that maybe the purpose is to 9 create only one way to resolve employment disputes, 1
10 eliminaté the at-will doctrine. 1 don't kmow. 1t's 10 would be troubled by that. But Mr. Grueskin assured
11 just as easily stated, I'think; that the purpose is 11 me that that's not a proper interpretation. I think
12 1o require just cadse. They're kind of two sides of 12 it's ambiguous at best on that, and -- and so ¢
13 the same point. 13 similarly I think the proper interpretation js that :
14 And it just seemss to me that what the 14 itwoulcn't create that problem And so since 4
15 measure does is require just cause for employment 15 interpret it as not cansing those problems, it does -
16 terrminations or -~ or actions. And everything else 16 seemto meet the single-subject requirerent. 3
17 is-- seems to be kind of an effect from that. It 17 MR. HOBBS: Any comment, Mr. Cartin? 4
18 does have an irmpact on the state persormel system, 18 MR. CARTIN: I think that —-and [ think I 3
19 and thal’s -- that’s an employment situation. And it 19 articulated this at the Iast - in our last neeting 4
20  seems io me that the proponents can — whatever 20 onthis. I think the measure, without a doubt, if 4
21 standards that they-went to epply to actions ageinst {21 we're — it may be conjecture, but I - 1 do think
22 employees, they can apply that to the state personnel § 22  that it does by the — by the plain language of the :
23 systemas — as well. 23  measure will have a number of effects. And whether [
24 So 1 ~ that's just kind of the way that 24 those effects amount (o purposes that are g
25 I'm looldn%;it,fis that #t's about just cause and 25 intcrﬁalated, wr:he:?er if _!hey’riim\em]ated meﬁc £
18 {Pages 66 10 69)
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hidden, Again, it's not that I'm wmwilling to do the
work; 1t's just that T think that as atitle board
member that - there's a tension there between kind
of going through that exercise and the line of cases
that say that we — that the title board should

afford generally the proponent the benefit of the
doubt in moving forward with an initiative.

Would a state employee voting on this
measure who is supportive of discharge for cause be
surprised to learn that their administrative process
and — and due process under the relevant personnel
board rules has — has been impacted and perbaps
removed and replaged by this? Would they be
surprised? They might.

Again, J guess that's one of the reasons
why I'm -- I'm kind of reluctant to go down the road
of kind of specuieting on - on who would be
surprised and what ameunts to a hidden purpose in the
coils of a measure. T do -- again, 1 think there are
a number of effects here. 1 do think that they
relate to a single subject, 1 think the single
subject is articulated in the title that was set by
the board at the last meeting,

Y'm respeéetful of Mr. Friednash's
arguments with regard to'multiple -- the
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disagreements about what this actually would do,
which suggests to me we may not understand it as well
as we might. But I'm still not quite far enough
along to vote no, although I'm gelting nervous.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you. All that's in
favor say aye.

MR. CARTIN: Aye.

MR. DOMENICCG: Aye.

MR HOBBS: All that are opposed say no.
That motion casries three to zero. Ang that
voncludes action on Number 62. The ime is
12:37 p.m. Thank you very much.

MR. FRIEDNASH: Thank you.

{The hearing concluded at 12:37 p.m.,
March 5, 2008.)
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single-subject argument and also with his arguments
relevant to the text of the title set by the board.

1 think the title accurately reflects the measure. 1

also think that the changes that were made by the
proponents be — aftér the review and cormment meeting
and before submittal to the title board were. in
Tesponse to the questions and comments of the
legistative staff. And so for those -- for those

reasons, although, again, 1 think that with a measure
like this, it has - il has a number of impacts.

and - but I'm reluctant say that those — whatever
effects -- whatever purposes are somehow onrelated or
that there are some hidden purposes, at this point,
don't see that with this measure and so [ would stay
with my vote the last time and find that this has a
single subject.

MR. HOBBS: Thank you very much. I'H po
zhead and make a motion then. I'l move that the
board deny the motion for rehearing.

MR. CARTIN: Second.

MR, HOBBS: That has been moved with a
second. Any firther discussion?

MR. DOMENICO: Can T fust say that I'm
starting to be a little bit troubled by the fact that
the three of us seem to have same serious
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